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Vision BA=

We aim to be a globally recognised and
leading regional independent quality
assurance body in education and training.
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Mission f{#fy

We safeguard the credibility of qualifications
under the Hong Kong Qualifications
Framework (HKQF) and facilitate the
continuous quality enhancement and
excellence of education and training in
Hong Kong and the region through our
accreditation, assessment, quality audit and
consulting services.

BB EERTE % EEZRERE
RRH  BOIBREBEERBORE
1 REA BRI RS RIEIIE
ERERTT B



H 8%

FEHY
ERFE
RBEHE
FER
WEE
REERBRRETEIETHR
THEHE
.« FIERSG

- EMirsrE

- BXMBEXEFENE
o PR
- BEFERHE
- BEERBLREEAM
.« RIS
- HONEBEMAE
PR E
B 8%
- HRZECRERE

X5

11
15
25
26
27

31
36
46
53
59
62
67
72
120

Contents

Highlights of the Year
Chairman’s Message
Executive Director’s Report
The Council
The Secretariat
Implementation of Strategic Plan
Operational Review
+ Accreditation
— Academic Accreditation
— Vocational and Professional Accreditation
* Assessment
+ Qualifications Assessment
+ Qualifications Framework and Qualifications Register
+ Research and Training
+ Engagement and Collaboration
Financial Report

Appendix

«  Terms of Reference of Committees



Q

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
FENY
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2020 2020

HKCAAVQ Council Member Professor Bjern Stensaker was invited to make a HKCAAVQ Spring Luncheon 2020
202071 B BT ETE

presentation at our Roundtable.

FEBARNES, USIE SR R -
FERA B BBjom Stensaker RINGT & FIEl= &% 2020(E 2 4 https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavg-s|

https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavg-roundtable-2020
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2019

HKCAAVQ was invited by the Korean Skills Quality Authority (KSQA to speak at the
2019 International Forum on TVET in Seoul.
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https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavg-invited-to-speak-at-the-international-
forum-on-tvet-in-seoul
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Highlights of the Year
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2019

Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director of HKCAAVQ, was a panelist at the Applied
Education Forum hosted by Federation for Self-financing Tertiary Education (FSTE)
and Our Hong Kong Foundation (OHKF).
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https;//www.hkcaava.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavg-speaks-at-fste-ohkf-applied-education-forum

oring-luncheon-2020
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2019

HKCAAVQ renewed the Memorandum of Cooperation (MoC) with the Tertiary Education Quality and Standards Agency,
Australia (TEQSA).
AERERNSEHAE MERERBEE AR

https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavg-renews-memorandum-of-cooperation-with-tegsa
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Highlights of the Year
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2019

HKCAAVQ was invited to speak at the QAPHE-organised International HKCAAVQ was invited to present at the Asia-Pa

Symposium in Tokyo, Japan. Education Workshop in Hanoi, Vietnam.
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https://www.hkcaavqg.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavg-invited-to-give-keynote- https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavq

speech-at-gaphe-international-symposium-in-tokyo workshop-at-hanoi

APEC
Education

Organised by the Qualifications Framework Secretariat and the Education Bureau, and co-
organised by HKCAAVQ, the Seminar provided updates on the indication of CAT information on
the Qualifications Register (QR) and good practices in the use of QF credit in CAT arrangement.
HEBRRBUERRREREN  AERAMNEEENEAREN RIEREREL - f2ft
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https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/en/events/edb-qfs-jointly-host-seminar-on-use-of-gf-credit-and-

credit-accumulation-and-transfer
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cific Economic Cooperation (APEC) Online
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Highlights of the Year
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24-25

2019

Led by Executive Director Mr Albert Chow, HKCAAVQ's delegation participated in the
Quality Beyond Boundaries Group (QBBG) Meeting hosted by SkillsFuture Singapore
(SSG).
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https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavg-participates-in-gbbg-meeting-2019

MEMBERSHIP HOSPITALITY ACADEMY
LAUNCH CEREMONY

FAREAMARERERRE
[Avd T
THE HONG HONG JOGKEY CLUB

The Hong Kong Jockey Club (HKIC) officially launched the Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership Hospitality Academy. It was the
first of its kind in Hong Kong to operate in collaboration with a provider the hospitality programmes at QF Level 5 accredited by

HKCAAVQ.
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https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavg-invited-to-officiate-at-hkjc-membership-hospitality
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Highlights of the Year
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25-26

2019

Mr. Albert Chow, Executive Director of HKCAAVQ, was invited to present
at the Forum on QF collaborations in Greater Bay Area. To implement
the Outline of the Development Plan for Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area, the Department of Education of Guangdong Province
invited representatives from government departments and experts to
participate in the Forum.
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https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavg-speaks-at-greater-bay-
area-qualifications-framework-discussion-forum
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HKCAAVQ co-organised FSTE Conference 20
Higher Education for Next Decade”, in celebrat
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https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/en/even
conference-2019
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Highlights of the Year

FEYY

2019

HKCAAVQ was invited to attend the Opening Ceremony of Corporate Tech Academy
Network (CTAN), co-founded by six corporations.
FTEE RIERK I FE 1 7S FTAK BB S I (b RIS e A48 2 I E1E o

https://www.hkcaava.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavg-invited-to-corporate-tech-academy-network

19 with the theme of “Developing
ion of FSTE 25th anniversary.
IRENEESSHEMBEATE

s/hkcaavg-co-organises-fste-

QUALITY ASSURANCE

EAE R EETER g T e L EnE




CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
ERFE

Chairman : Ir Dr Alex Chan, BBS
T BRIIRIEL - BBS

It is my great pleasure to share with you what HKCAAVQ has
accomplished over the past year and the direction ahead. Publication
of this Annual Report is of special meaning as we celebrate the 30th
Anniversary of HKCAAVQ.

First, the new Strategic Plan 2019-2023 was published and took effect
from 1 October 2019. This is the 2nd cycle of strategic plan during my
term as the HKCAAVQ Council Chairman. Thanks to the former Strategic
Planning Task Force. The new plan sees a significant number of new
objectives and strategies under the refined strategic directions. This
came after the Council's enhanced system of annual progress reports
and introduction of a mid-term review since the 2015-2019 cycle which
enabled timely health-check and adjustments to the actions plan. One of
the important strategies outlined in the Strategic Plan 2019-2023 is the
development and conduct of governance and management review in the
coming four years. This along with other strategies are expected to further
demonstrate the organisational capability in our provision of high quality
services and support to the education and training community in the
pursuance of continuous quality enhancement and excellence.

In this anniversary year, the Secretariat has put up a

section on HKCAAVQ website. | invite you to take a look at the highlights
of activities organised, the small publication for the 30th anniversary
titted “Growth in Our Footprints”, as well as the collections of historical
photos and publications of our organisation. As we look back at these
records, with familiar names and faces therein, we are again inspired
and deeply encouraged by many of them who devoted much of their
wisdom, strengths and time in the work of HKCAAVQ and the education
and training sector in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (SAR)
and beyond. HKCAAVQ is proud to partake in this remarkable journey
of quality assurance development. Once again, we express our heartfelt
gratitude to their invaluable contributions.
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https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/zh/30th-anniversary

Since our scope of work was expanded in 2007 to cover both academic
and vocational and professional education and training (VPET), more
attention has been directed to facilitating the understanding of VPET
providers about the values of Qualifications Framework and the
underpinning QA system.

Recently, we have embarked on high-level exchanges with key QA
agencies in the areas of VPET in Asia. We are hopeful that this will be
taken forward with the signing of memorandum of understanding with a
key QA agency in VPET and new collaborative opportunities.

Human resource development is crucial to the long-term sustainability
of Hong Kong economy. What is gaining more prominence in respect
of human resource strategies is the changing demand of expertise and
knowledge in the era of Industrial Revolution 4.0. By sharing insight and
perspective with QA agencies in VPET, we strive to keep abreast of the
new developments and translate new ideas into innovative application of
our accreditation approach to better support the advancement of VPET
provision.

Education is going through dramatic change. Many are asking the
questions: how can we prepare learners for jobs that have not yet been
created, to use new technologies that have yet to be invented, to tackle
real-life challenges in an increasingly dynamic, interconnected world.
The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic serves as a catalyst to expedite
the change. New opportunities also come with the change. Micro-
credentials, work-based learning and assessment, applied degrees,
vocationally oriented education at higher levels, emergence of more
online programmes, etc. are issues of mutual interest among the QA
community. As an QA agency, we endeavour to embrace the challenges,
and seek continuous improvement. Most importantly, we will maintain
close dialogue and collaborations with our stakeholders local and afar in
order that the education provision is adapted to the change and remains
of high relevance to tomorrow's need.

As we navigate through a new normal in the COVID-19 epidemic
situation, | wish you are staying healthy and very well.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
RBREBERE

Executive Director: Mr Albert Chow
weE | FEMLAE

The year of 2019/20 has been an intensive year of challenges and
opportunities for our organisation and the community at large. The
development of COVID-19 pandemic around the world has posed
unprecedented challenges.

At HKCAAVQ, our continuous quality enhancement availed us the first
ever opportunity to improve quality assurance practices and pave the way
for virtual site visit meetings in conducting accreditation. In the process,
we developed the critical IT strategies, identified the possible solutions
and risks, and pilot the best available options with due diligence. After
the organisational capability was assured, we reached out to accreditation
panels and engaged our operators in detailed planning and discussions
as early as possible in each and every exercise. This approach assisted
in building mutual understanding and supporting change management
efforts on all sides. In response to our suggestion, most accreditation
panels and operators were more than willing to adapt to the new
arrangement. At the time of reporting, | am pleased to share that most
of the accreditation exercises were able to proceed as scheduled and by
and large ran smoothly. We owed the accreditation panels and operators
our deep gratitude and appreciation. Admittedly, what we and our
stakeholders learnt from the experience was that conducting accreditation
through virtual site visits require well-planned process and vigilant
monitoring which often led to identification and resolution of critical issues
prior to the virtual site visits.
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With effect from 1 October 2019, we embarked on the new Strategic
Plan 2019-2023. The new cycle of strategic plan was a result of
consolidating past accomplishments, self-reflection, stakeholder
engagement and making necessary adjustments to strategic directions.
In the strategic plan, HKCAAVQ has outlined the objectives and
strategies how we realise the mission and vision and continue to meet
the expectations of our stakeholders taking into account the remit of
HKCAAVQ under the HKCAAVQ Ordinance (Cap. 1150).

One of the strategies underpinning the strategic plan is to enhance
support to operators, specialists and staff in the context of facilitating
quality assurance, quality enhancement and excellence in education and
training.

On local front, HKCAAVQ joined hands with the Qualifications Framework
Secretariat (QFS) in implementing the indication of QF Credit for Learning
Programmes at QF Levels 5 to 7 on the Qualifications Register (QR)
under the Education Bureau (EDB)'s initiative. The implementation
timeframe was announced in June 2019. HKCAAVQ was commissioned
to provide training workshops to support the operators.
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Executive Director's Report
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In support of the Quality Assurance System for the Recognition Scheme
(QASRS) under the Security and Guarding Services Industry Authority
(SGSIA), HKCAAVQ organised a series of training workshops for providers
of basic security training programmes. The workshops aim to help the
training providers familiarise with our accreditation standards and process.
It is of relevance to the training providers, as basic security training
programmes accredited by HKCAAVQ would be deemed as meeting the
standards of QASRS. Following the workshops, interested providers opted
to undergo the collective accreditation approach by HKCAAVQ between
mid-2019 and end-2020.

In October 2019, HKCAAVQ announced the new service for
accreditation of locally delivered joint programmes under the Hong Kong
Qualifications Framework (HKQF). At the initial stage, this service is for
joint programmes leading to awards jointly conferred and delivered in
Hong Kong by two institutions as award granting bodies and operators.
Information on the approach and additional evidence requirements are
provided to facilitate the operators.

HKCAAVQ endeavours to contribute to the development of quality
assurance in the region and around the world. By invitation, we spoke
at the Forum themed Collaborations on Qualifications Framework (QF)
in the Greater Bay Area, and exchanged views and experience with
representatives from the government departments and education and
training institutions in the region. The Forum came one day after the
signing of Letter of Intent on QF Co-operation between Hong Kong and
Guangdong.

Built upon the long-term collaborative relationship between Hong
Kong and Macao, and with prior approval of Secretary for Education,
HKCAAVQ was commissioned by higher education institutions in Macao
to conduct programme reviews under the revised Higher Education Law
of the Macao Special Administrative Region. We cherished the mutual
understanding and trust that both sides established over the years and
would strive to facilitate and support the continuous quality enhancement
of the higher education in Macao.

HKCAAVQ is committed to supporting the promotion and development
of quality VPET. In recent years, we have reached out to the Korean
Skills Quality Authority and the SkillsFuture Singapore, and embarked on
strategic conversations with the two agencies with a view to exploring
new collaborative opportunities in VPET.

URANCE
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As a member of the Quality Beyond Boundaries Group (QBBG),
HKCAAVQ was invited to participate in the QBBG Annual Meeting 2019
organised by the SkillsFuture Singapore. The meeting enabled in-depth
discussions on latest developments of education and training, as well as
sharing of insights and perspectives among QBBG member agencies.

When the COVID-19 pandemic and related issues posed unparalleled
challenges to many, we worked together with the QBBG and other QA
networks to share good practices and experience, and support close and
constructive dialogue among the member agencies. A resource page
was incorporated into the issue 18 of HKCAAVQ Newsletter for reference
by local and international stakeholders. Looking ahead, while traditional
delivery and norms have been challenged, we remain confident that QA
agencies and the education and training institutions will hold fast our goal
of quality education and seek ways to work together in establishing the
new normal.

2020 marked the 30th anniversary of HKCAAVQ. We are fortunate that
the contributions and accomplishments by many forerunners of quality
assurance have been bestowed upon HKCAAVQ. This reaffirms our
commitment and determination to quality.
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With your continuous support, we look forward to facing the challenges — EE AT - RFIHER AR — N ERE
and serving the community together. ke - HARBHE -
Albert H P CHOW BEEF
Executive Director BHE
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THE COUNCIL
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THE COUNCIL AND
ITS FUNCTIONS

HERKERRE

ation of Academic and Vocational
erly known as the Hong Kong Council
on (HKCAA), was established in 1990 as an
y body to provide authoritative advice on academic
gree programmes in higher education institutions in Hong

n 2007, the Council was reconstituted under the HKCAAVQ Ordinance
(Chapter 1150). The HKCAAVQ took on responsibility for the vocational
sector and statutory roles as the Accreditation Authority and Qualifications
Register Authority under the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework under
the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance
(Chapter 592).

The HKCAAVQ provides quality assurance and assessment services to
education and training institutions, course providers and the general
public. In addition to its statutory roles, the HKCAAVQ also provides
advisory and consultancy services in education qualifications and
standards to government bureaux and other organisations in Hong Kong
and the Asia-Pacific region.

HKCAAVQ is governed by a Council comprising local and non-local
members. The Council of HKCAAVQ is established under section 3 of
the HKCAAVQ Ordinance. Its Chairman, Vice-chairman and members are
appointed by the Chief Executive of Hong Kong in their personal capacity
under the HKCAAVQ Ordinance.
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The Council
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ficio members.

The functions of the Council are defined in the HKCAAVQ Ordinance (Cap 1150):
BBFTEREE (B1150F) - FERNBER:
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The Council
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Council Term A &1EH]
1 October 2019 — 31 March 2020
201910 1B E2020%F3831H
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Chairman Vice-chairman
FE BlEE
Ir Dr Alex Chan Siu-kun, BBS Mr Chen Chung-nin, SBS, JP
fRIKIRE 1, BBS f&R B St A, SBS, JP
EX-OFFICIO
MEMBERS

2
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THE SECRETARIAT
WEE

The Executive Director, supported by two Deputies overseeing academic & BM A FEFHAS® B EEWEEH
accreditation and vocational and professional and training education 17 * WA A% E(S7) KA BHE(BES
(VPET) accreditation, leads the Secretariat which is the executive arm of A #HB )& - WER ATERNITHE -

the Councdil in the implementation of its decisions, functions and policies. B EHEEEFHRBASHRTE « BAEFMBUR -

The Secretariat is organised by business units supported by a number of — F 2 5 K 48 4% 28 4% m1 12 5 1 R AR 75 A9 B0 P9 K.
corporate services units. As at 31 March 2020, the Secretariat has 87 full-  fTBE# 3 FIAEA - B ZE2020F3 8318 -

time staff in post. HERMERLBTERMET -

ORGANISATION CHART

FER
Council
TERAE
Executive Support
and Engagement
B SR RER
Executive Director
Finance
B

Human Resources and
Administration

ANERRATH
Deputy Executive Director Deputy Executive Director
(Academic) VPET
BIEBE (21f) BEm=E (BXETHE)
. Qualifications .
RIS P ' Framework Vel
Accreditation Qualifications Research and Information - and Human Facilities
and Assessment Training Technology Gualietas Professional Resources Management
Assessment Regi Accreditation
egister
27T 5 - . BREFER jESFEES o
R ZETE R RIEN ERBHR EEEH e ANER RiEEE

Remarks:  Currently Information Technology unit is under the ED purview and will be under one of the DEDs when they are on board.
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IMPLEMENTATION OF STRATEGIC
REERTEIETRR

To better inform our stakeholders about the various strategic
development of HKCAAVQ, we would share about the implementation of
Strategic Plan 2019-2023 in this designated section moving forward.

In this new strategic plan cycle, HKCAAVQ aims to be and are working
relentlessly towards a globally recognised and leading regional quality
assurance body.

In the next few years, we would actively seek to further strengthen
collaborations with the Qualifications Framework Secretariat (QFS) and
support the promotion and development of vocational and professional
education and training (VPET) under HKQF.

Facilitating and supporting the pursuance of quality enhancement and
excellence by operators continues to be the focus of our accreditation
work. Efforts are being made to introduce new initiatives including
applying the HKCAAVQ's Four-stage Quality Assurance Process under
HKQF in an innovative manner in tandem with the latest developments
in education and training landscapes.

At the Council level, a plan for the first conduct of governance and
management review was adopted by the Council with a task force to be
established in September 2020.

On regional engagement, we have embarked on dialogue with four
quality assurance agencies with the remit on higher education and VPET,
and are about to conclude the collaborations agreement with the signing
of Memorandum of Understanding in second half of 2020.

HKCAAVQ Strategic Plan 2019-2023 is made available here: https://
www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/en/about-us/HKCAAVQ-Strategic-Plan-2019-23.
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ACCREDITATION
=T 2 IR %%

HKCAAVQ accredits academic and vocational and professional education
and training (VPET) programmes by applying its accreditation standards
to ensure that the learning programmes and their operators meet
the minimum quality standards for recognition under the Hong Kong
Qualifications Framework (HKQF) and entry into the Qualifications
Register (QR).

Accredited programmes are listed in the QR, a publicly available website
that lists all of the quality assured programmes and qualifications in Hong
Kong, including those offered by the self-accrediting, publicly-funded
universities. Summary reports or full reports of accreditation outcomes are
published on the HKCAAVQ website to help learners make an informed
decision on their studies.

Major Developments
Consultancy Work in Macao SAR

Since the promulgation of the revised Higher Education Law of the
Macao Special Administrative Region in 2018, HKCAAVQ has been in
contact with and providing capacity building opportunities to higher
education institutions (HEls) in Macao to help them understanding
the opportunities brought about by the implementation of the Higher
Education Quality Evaluation System (System) in Macao.

In 2019, HKCAAVQ has engaged in the programme reviews for one HEI
in Macao under the System. During the reporting period of 2019/20,
HKCAAVQ was invited by HEls in Macao to provide programme review
consultancy services for bachelor's degree and postgraduate degree
programmes in various academic disciplines in 2020 and 2021.
HKCAAVQ met with the senior management of HEls to discuss their
plans for meeting the requirements and timeline for external evaluation
as set out in the rules and regulations of Macao Higher Education Law.
We look forward to more opportunities for contributing to the quality
enhancement of higher education in Macao.
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Quality Assurance Online Knowledgebase (QAOK)

Funded by the Quality Enhancement Support Scheme (QESS) of EDB,
the Quality Assurance Online Knowledgebase (QAOK) was launched
by HKCAAVQ in 2017 as an electronic platform containing examples of
good practices identified from local and international Quality Assurance
(QA) community. QAOK serves to disseminate good practices in the
community for institutions and operators to improve QA processes.

HKCAAVQ has been updating and keeping QAOK an up-to-date
knowledgebase for the QA community and for the public to access.
QAOK is currently hosting a board spectrum of over 160 good practices
under 28 designated topics including but not limited to Institutional
Governance and Management, Online and Blended Education,
Transnational Education, Quality Assurance and Enhancement System,
Programme Development and Approval Processes, Teaching Quality
and Staff Development, Enhancing the Student Learning Experience, and
Global Engagements: Strategies and Current Developments. Recently,
the following three good practices have been uploaded to QAOK.

(1) A standing committee for ensuring the proper conduct of General
Education (Topic: Programme Development)

(2) Guidelines and checklists for the design and implementation of
General Education (Topic: Programme Development)

(3) Applying multiple methods for evaluating GE courses (Topic:
Student Assessment)
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To continue to support the development of a quality culture in T ERAEEEHERLRRELEZRE
the educational sector, HKCAAVQ will carry on with the updating, 1t @FBEEERENHAEANENHEE
maintenance and development of QAOK by engaging and @MBE  THEHNBEEZRER LM
communicating with internal and external stakeholders in the QA and & JE - Al @ SIERTSERTRNELN -
education communities. Meanwhile, evaluation of the effectiveness N8 -5 EM TIEYT » & AL AN
of QAOK to achieve its objectives will be conducted regularly through — EERIRRR o BB S E =R EM F A ET
various means such as on-line survey and workshops. QAOK can be RZHEEEER -

accessed via this link. Visits and feedbacks are much welcomed.
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Quality Assurance Online Knowledgebase J About ' Good Practices . Topées

Exploring good practices
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ACADEMIC ACCREDITATION

HKCAAVQ provides an extensive range of academic accreditation services,
including accreditation of programmes offered by post-secondary
institutions at postgraduate, degree and sub-degree levels, and non-local
learning programmes (NLP) registered or exempted from registration
under the Non-local Higher and Professional Courses (Regulation)
Ordinance (Cap 493). HKCAAVQ also conducts Institutional Review (IR)
for institutions seeking registration under the Post-Secondary Colleges
Ordinance (Cap 320) for degree-awarding status, and Institutional Review
for institutions seeking Private University Status.

Key Figures

Comparison of Breakdown of Academic Programmes Accredited
or Re-accredited in 2018/19 and 2019/20

Local Programme Accreditation

2 1 5 =
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Academic Accreditation
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Local Programme Re-accreditation
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Academic Accreditation
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Comparison of Breakdown of Academic Programmes Accredited or Re-accredited in 2018/19 and 2019/20
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Academic Accreditation
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Comparison of Breakdown of Initial Evaluation Exercises in 2018/19 and 2019/20
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Comparison of Number of Programme Area Accreditation
Exercises and Number of Programme Areas in 2018/19 and
2019/20

y

Academic Accreditation
BirsTE

2018/19}%2019/20 F EERHETEHF

Programme Area Accreditation 7% &3E573%

2018/19

2019/20

1 (2 programme areas) 0
1 (AR E)

1 (1 programme area)

1 (MESFEE) 1 (1EASREE)

(1 programme area)

(1EEFEE)

(3 programme areas) 1

(3ESHBE) 1

Comparison of Number of Periodic Institutional Review Exercises
and Number of Programme Areas involved in 2018/19 and
2019/20

Periodic Institutional Review ##EEEEE

1 (1 programme area)

Level 6 ZE754%

Level 5 ERAR

2018/19K2019/20 F EREEHBEEHF

2018/19 2019/20

1 (2 programme areas) 1 (7 programme areas)
1 (2AERIEE) 1 (TESEREE)

(2 programme areas) 1 (7 programme areas)

(MR R HE) 1 Esna@)

In 2019/20, HKCAAVQ conducted Learning Programme Accreditation
(LPA) for a total of 18 local programmes and 7 non-local programmes,
and Learning Programme Re-accreditation (re-LPA) for 44 local
programmes and 7 non-local programmes.

When compared with the previous year, there was no significant change
in the number of local programmes accredited. There was however an
increase in the number of local programmes re-accredited, because of
a 29-programme re-accreditation exercise conducted for one operator
during the reporting period.

There was a decrease in the total number of non-local programmes
accredited and re-accredited when compared with the previous year due
to the discontinuation of 10 non-local programmes.

Programme Area Accreditation (PAA) and Periodic Institutional Review

(PIR) exercises were conducted in 8 programme areas for two
institutions.
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VOCATIONAL AND PROFESSIONAL ACCREDITATION

HKCAAVQ provides accreditation and quality assurance services for V2 B AR 2 E A4 HE MIE A PR HTE
vocational and professional education and training (VPET). VPET REZRBRHG - BEZ ST HEMIEIIRR
operators come from different sectors including private education/training & #i & HBERIR L - BIELLEHEF HIlkR
institutes, public organisations, non-government organisations (NGO), —#% « A& - JERUFAL -  EXEELT
professional bodies and commercial corporations of different scales. EIAAIE 2 P s -

Key Figures FEHTF

This year marked a fruitful year for vocational and professional $R&EHIR @ FFER/ TR T21BH L HENT
accreditation. A total of 21 Initial Evaluations (IE) were completed and — ##F{E ML 135ERIRFERBEENITIE -
135 leamning programmes were accredited or re-accredited.

Breakdown of vocational programme accreditation and re- SERADFFEWFERE @ REIEZERRERE

accreditation BEENREEFEREYE
QF Level Number of IE Number of LPA Number of Re-LPA
BERT DIEZAE Y 4 FREFEFEE REEFHHE

2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20

QF Level 6
BB ER - - - 2 - -
QF Level 5
BRFEBESR 1 3 2 4 4 -
QF Level 4
BB EAR 3 7 14 17 19 5
QF Level 3
BRFEBEIR 9 6 33 33 60 29
QF Level 2
BFEREBE2R - 2 23 13 90 17
QF Level 1
BREEBE R 3 3 10 12 75 3
Total
BE 16 21 82 81 248 54
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In the year 2019/20, the number of newly accredited operators
increased when compared with the last year. Some accredited operators
undertook IE at a higher QF Level than their previously approved IE status.
For example, the Training Centre of Ngong Ping 360 Limited undertook
an IE exercise at QF Level 4 and The Hong Kong Jockey Club College at
QF Level 5.

Moreover, a number of newly accredited operators come from the
security industry. With effect from 1 January 2019, basic security training
programmes accredited by HKCAAVQ are deemed as meeting the
standards of Quality Assurance System for Recognition Scheme (QASRS)
of the Security and Guarding Services Industry Authority (SGSIA). During
the reporting period, a total of eight accreditation exercises for basic
security training programmes were conducted under the collective
accreditation approach, three of which involved IE for new operators.

During the reporting period, while the number of newly accredited
programmes remained relatively similar, the number of learning
programmes re-accredited declined. This was due to the large scale re-
accreditation exercises conducted for the Employees Retraining Board in
2018/19.

During the year, a broad spectrum of operators had sought HKCAAVQ's
accreditation, including government units, statutory bodies, NGOs,
operators offering in-house learning programmes and in the school
sector, etc.
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation

WEREXEETE

Accreditation with Government Units

The Immigration Service Institute of Training and Development of the
Immigration Department of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(HKSAR) was granted the IE status at QF Level 5. At the same time, its
induction programme for Immigration Officers pitched at QF Level 5
and a staff continuous development programme at QF Level 4 were
accredited. This is the third disciplinary unit of the HKSAR Government to
have its induction programme recognised under QF.

HKCAAVQ accredited the Certificate for Commercial Crime Investigation
Course for Investigators at QF Level 3 and the Professional Certificate
for Commercial Crime Investigation Course for Supervisors at QF Level
4 from the Support and Training Section (Commercial Crime Bureau,
Crime Wing, Hong Kong Police Force). The two programmes are in-house
training programmes for investigators and supervisors respectively.

Accreditation of Member Organisation under
Statutory Body

The Hong Kong International Aviation Academy Limited was a newly
established member organisation of the Airport Authority Hong Kong, and
also a statutory body under the Airport Authority Ordinance (Cap. 483). It
was granted the IE status at QF Level 4 and its two learning programmes
in the area of management and operation of the aviation industry were
accredited at QF Levels 3 and 4 respectively.

Accreditation of NGO

A combined IE and LPA exercise was completed for the Po Leung Kuk
Academy of Professional Education. The newly established Academy
aims to provide professional education and training programmes in
the interdisciplinary areas of education, social services and health care.
Three learning programmes related to early childhood education were
accredited at QF Level 4 and are expected to be launched in 2020.
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Accreditation of In-house Learning Programme

A number of operators from different industries have applied
accreditation for their in-house training programmes. For example, the Sa
Sa Beauty Academy of Sa Sa Cosmetic Company Limited undertook a
combined IE and LPA exercise at QF Level 2. This was the operator’s first
SCS-based in-house training programme accredited, covering both beauty
and retail industries.

Accreditation in the School Sector

The re-accreditation exercise with the Diploma Yi Jin (DYJ) at QF Level
3 was completed in March 2020. In addition to the 5 Core Courses
and the centrally-developed Elective Course, Maths Plus, there are 187
Elective Clusters to be offered by the seven member institutions from
2020/21 academic year onwards.

Programme Area Accreditation (PAA)

A PAA exercise covering the programme area “Law Enforcement and
Security Studies” at QF Level 5 was conducted for the Hong Kong Police
College. This is the first VPET operator having obtained PAA status at QF
Level 5.
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In addition to accreditation under the Four-stage Quality Assurance
Process under HKQF, HKCAAVQ also provides other types of accreditation
service in the VPET sector.

Non-QF Accreditation Outside Hong Kong

A non-QF accreditation exercise for a learning programme delivered
in Mainland China was conducted in September 2019. The learning
programme is offered by a local accredited Operator, Apprentice Jockey's
School of the Hong Kong Jockey Club in partnership with its subsidiary,
Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse Training Limited. The purpose of the
programme is to train in-house farrier in Mainland China.
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Accreditation of Assessment Agency (AA) for
Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL)

An accreditation exercise was conducted with the Caritas Institute of
Community Education (CICE) to accredit it as the AA for the RPL of the
Beauty Industry. Upon completion of the accreditation and subsequent
appointment by the Secretary for Education (SED), CICE became
the seventh AA for operating RPL assessments. During the year, re-
accreditation was also conducted with the HKU School of Professional
and Continuing Education, Hong Kong Productivity Council and Vocational
Training Council to re-accredit them as AA for the RPL of the Logistics,
Manufacturing Technology (Tooling, Metals and Plastics), and Retail
Industries respectively.
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Accreditation of AA for Professional Qualifications

For expanding its scope of accreditation status as an AA for Professional
Qualifications, an accreditation exercise was conducted with the Marine
Department of the HKSAR Government. Upon completion of the
accreditation and subsequent appointment by SED, a total of eight local
Certificates of Competency at QF Levels 2 to 3 have been added to its
existing scope and are recognised under HKQF.

Accreditation of SCS-based programmes

Since the launch of the QF in 2008, the EDB has been forming Industry
Training Advisory Committees (ITACs)/Cross-Industry Training Advisory
Committee (CITAC) for various industries with a view to developing
industry-based Specifications of Competency Standards (SCS) and
SCS-based Training Packages (Training Packages). As at March 2020,
22 ITACs including one CITAC were formed. An increasing number of
operators have developed SCS-based programmes by adopting the
relevant Units of Competencies (UoCs) specified in the SCS.

During the reporting period, HKCAAVQ accredited 57 SCS-based
programmes for 10 industries. In view of increasing demand on elderly
care service and the launch of the subsidy scheme for training by
the Social Welfare Department, an increasing number of SCS-based
programmes in the Elderly Care Service Industry were accredited.

For meeting the new arrangement of QASRS by the SGSIA, a total of
8 SCS-based programmes in the Security Services Industry sought

HKCAAVQ's accreditation during the reporting period.

As at March 2020, a total of 456 SCS-based programmes (QF Levels 1-6)
covering 18 industries are listed on the QR.
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Breakdown of SCS-based programmes (QF levels 1-6) on the QR
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Moderation of SCS and Training Packages

In support of the development of the QF, HKCAAVQ conducts
moderation of SCS and SCS-based Training Packages at the request of
EDB. During the reporting period, HKCAAVQ moderated three sets of SCS
for the Arboriculture and Horticulture, Jewellery and Logistics Industries
respectively, as well as four sets of SCS-based Training Packages for the
Beauty, Hairdressing and Security Services Industries.

Major Developments

During the reporting period, HKCAAVQ has been working closely with
different stakeholders in the VPET sector and playing an increasingly
important role in supporting the different initiatives for enhancing the
capability of the local workforce.

Differentiation Approach to Learning Programme Accreditation
Adopting Training Packages

Implementation of differentiation approach to accreditation has been
extended to learning programmes adopting the Training Packages
produced by the different ITACs. Learning programmes with contents
based on one or more training packages would be considered for
differentiation approach to accreditation, including paper review, and/
or customised accreditation submission and/or variation in the validity
period.

QASRS Training Workshop

To facilitate potential operators to apply for accreditation, three tailor-
made workshops on accreditation for QASRS programmes were
conducted during the reporting period. The workshops provided an
overview of the accreditation process and standards as well as the QASRS
requirements. A total of 35 operators with more than 60 participants
attended the three workshops.

Accreditation of Local Joint Awards

Starting from October 2019, HKCAAVQ accepts applications for
accreditation of locally delivered joint awards under the QF. The
accreditation service is for joint programmes leading to awards which are
jointly conferred and delivered in Hong Kong by two institutions as award
granting bodies and operators.
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Future Development/Priorities

In the coming year, HKCAAVQ will continue to work with different
stakeholders in supporting the development of the HKQF and the VPET
sector.

Accreditation Plan on the Security Training Programmes under
QASRS

Following the tailor-made workshops conducted on accreditation for
QASRS programmes, four collective accreditation exercises are scheduled
in September 2020, November 2020, January 2021 and March 2021
for operators who wish to obtain accreditation status for their basic
security training programmes and be recognised under the QASRS. Tailor-
made workshops will continue to be held in the next reporting period.
For a more efficient accreditation process, a tailor-made Submission
Form embedding the QASRS requirements has been launched. The
differentiation approach will also be applied to operators who develop
their programmes by adopting relevant Training Packages of the Security
Services Industry.

Accreditation Plan on AA

Apart from providing vocational and professional learning programmes
accreditation, HKCAAVQ also supports the development of the
HKQF through its provision of accreditation services for institutions,
organisations or professional bodies for the purpose of serving as
appointed assessment agencies under the Accreditation of Academic
and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (AAVQO) (Cap 592). To support
the development, accreditation is planned for AA for new professional
qualifications and RPL mechanism for new industries.
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In addition to accreditation under the QF, HKCAAVQ provides a range of
assessment services and consultancy services as authorised under any
other enactment and/or by the Secretary for Education. For examples:

(a) The provision of professional advice to the Registrar of Nonlocal
Higher and Professional Education Courses (the Registrar) in the
assessment of non-local courses registered or exempted from
registration under the Non-local Higher and Professional Education
(Regulation) Ordinance (Cap. 493). The approval of registration or
exemption from registration of a non-local course under Cap. 493
rests with the Registrar.

(b) The provision of expert advice to the Labour and Welfare Bureau
(LWB), the final approval authority of the Continuing Education Fund
(CEF), on the courses to be included in the register of reimbursable
courses under the CEF.

(c) Performing the role of the sole assessment authority for the
Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Programme under the
Insurance Intermediaries Quality Assurance Scheme (IIQAS) of the
Insurance Authority.

(d) The provision of quality assurance service of the Applied Learmning
(ApL) courses as commissioned by the EDB.

Assessment of Non-local Courses

This year, HKCAAVQ assessed 31 new applications, 317 annual returns
and 143 applications for changes to registered non-local courses. Courses
leading to bachelor and master awards continue to be the majority in the
new applications.
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Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment
in 2018/19 and 2019/20 by level of study
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Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment
in 2018/19 and 2019/20 by geographic origin
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Assessment of Continuing Education Fund (CEF)
Courses

Commissioned by the Labour and Welfare Bureau (LWB), HKCAAVQ
is responsible for advising the LWB on the registration of courses to
be included in the list of reimbursable courses under the CEF, and
monitoring the quality and relevancy of courses after registration.

This year, HKCAAVQ conducted 44 surprise audit visits and assessed
2,879 applications, including 2,104 applications for course registration,
565 applications for course amendment and 210 applications for course
renewal upon expiry. The numbers for course registration and course
amendment application represent an increase of 588% and 10%
respectively.

FEEEESRETZ

BREBMEBEERTER(FHER)XST
LEHNB(SRB) R  ARFELEEES
AIERERIERIE (I ERESRRE) W E
REMREE R MBI -

HEBARAFEREFEZUED -+ HERE
Bt WERIEA K2, 879 BB EEEES A
BEEFERERBOTEIE: EF 15
2, 10483 :RIZEFE ~ S65EMIZIEN AR
210TERIZB IR - MEWEINFRIZHRA
RISMAEHE - £2018/19FE H BHL M
588%K.10% °

QUALITY ASSURANCE
QUALITY ENHANCEMENT

RN ML EFTIER 49 EXCELLENCE



e 1

Assessment

APz AR 7%

The number of audit visit conducted was less than that of last reporting &R 2019¥ A Bk SR EE - AREEHE
period mainly due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The massive inflow of ~EBEXZKEMBEEEF AL - T8 RME
course registrations arose mainly from the implementation of newly 201944 A1 BEE#H — R E L B(LiE
implemented CEF Enhancement Measures effective from 1 April 2019.  1& » BR T NKRIE T HIERIZN FIEERES
Under the CEF Enhancement Measures, all registered courses listed in =~ fiAKEFE Al K AE SRR (TER
the QR, on top of those registered courses previously fell within the eight — FRE A F AU EI A HTRIZEHRS -

specified CEF domains and listed in the QR, became eligible for CEF

registration.

Comparison of applications for CEF registration in FEESES TERETEREN
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Assessment of CPD Programmes

During the reporting period, 171 new assessment applications, 309
annual re-assessment applications and 185 change applications for
Type 1 Qualified Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Activities
for Licensed Insurance Intermediaries were processed. Compared to
last year, the number of new application increased by 23.9%, and the
number of re-assessment remained unchanged.

In addition to assessed Type 1 Qualified CPD Activities, 18 QF-recognised
learning programmes categorised under the Insurance Industry were
recognised as Type 3 Qualified CPD Activities for Licensed Insurance
Intermediaries through the mechanism of direct recognition.

Vetting service for QF recognised learning programmes to be recognised
as Type 4 Qualified CPD Activities was launched since November 2014.
During the reporting period, there were two learning programmes
recognised as such type.

To complement the Guideline on Continuing Professional Development
for Licensed Insurance Intermediaries (GL24) issued by the Insurance
Authority, HKCAAVQ published new sets of Guidance Notes on
Assessment of Structured Type 1 Qualified CPD Activities for Licensed
Insurance Intermediaries and Guidance Notes on Assessment of Type
1 Qualified E-learning Activities for Licensed Insurance Intermediaries in
December 2019 and March 2020 respectively. The assessment service
for e-learning CPD activities was also launched along with the publication
of the new Guidance Notes.
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Quality Assurance Services BERERE

HKCAAVQ continues to be commissioned by EDB to quality assure the ST pPgEENE BET AP ERES
delivery of Applied Learning (ApL) courses which are offered to senior B2 TE Z(RE Tk - TEBH LA 101E
secondary school students. Quality assurance visits were conducted 20192 1FEHfE LT RIZEHER ; AR
for 10 of the ApL courses for the 2019-21 cohort. Course providers’ 7 1R 101E2017-19F E B2 HIER E T -
self-evaluation for the 2017-19 cohort of 10 other ApL courses was e EREE - WARBENZIRHE
also reviewed, identifying the good practices therein and providing % -

recommendations for their continuous improvement.
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QUALIFICATIONS ASSESSMENT
2 T {E

HKCAAVQ offers qualifications assessment services for the general public, FERARAT AL - NEIHE T AT EEFIIR
organisations, and government bureaux/departments on qualifications £ 3F 7K Hb & FE 58 5% 1 8 3% ) 2 F (AR
awarded by granting bodies outside Hong Kong. In the assessment 7 o R ESF  FELRSRIEHBAZ
report, HKCAAVQ offers a professional opinion on whether the totality of #2822 F(NBEFACESHNESEF - U
the educational qualifications (i.e. the integrated learning outcomes of the NEFUHEFEEBFZEMNEBE L5838 K
highest qualification including those learning outcomes achieved through %) » R & ERE B BESHRE T EERR
learning deemed to have a substantial bearing on the qualification under ~ EVIZERHEHFZEZ R -

assessment) of an individual meets the standard of a particular level of

qualification in Hong Kong.

Key Figures BEYT
Qualifications Assessment Cases by Source of Application BT (5 A5 KR
(1 April 2019-31 March 2020) (20194441 H—20209F3431H)
‘ 2018-19 2019-20 Source of Application l
Number 8 Number 8B R R SRR
Civil Service Bureau Total #8
141 ABEBHR
78 Education Bureau
BER 2018/19

3645 @kt

761 Other Organisations 2019/20 4 : 825 J

Hibs
N
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Qualifications Assessment

BE AT h
Level of Major Qudlifications held by Applicants HEAR T EZFEE
(1 April 2019-31 March 2020) (2019%F 4.4 1H—2020F3A31H)

< %
FEN BN E N BN

Doctoral Degree Master’'s Degree Postgraduate Diploma/ Bachelor’'s Degree
[Chn i Certificate =
RIESURBE
Number Number Number Number
HE #E £ S HE

59 65 656 836 || 327 297 || 3,095 3,119

\ 2018-19 2019-20 / \  2018-19 2019-20 / \ 2018-19 2019-20 / \ 2018-19 2019-20

' . Total #8
"z 6 =
FE N K N B
Sub-degree Secondary School Level Others 5 y 04 3
BB RERRE Eofth 201819
ngé)er Nlé;né)er Nté&né)er N“&“ger
520 473 || 131 112 || 255 203 4,825

\ 2018-19 201920 / \ 2018-19 201920 / \ 2018-19 2019-20 2019-20
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Place of Award of the Major Qualifications held by Applicants
(1 April 2019-31 March 2020)

/ Australia \
BN

Number

#E

375 41

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /
/ India \
ENE

Number

181 85

/ Canada \
mex
Number

E={E|

182 174

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /
/ Pakistan \
A HTA

Number

HE

13 14

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /
/ Japan \
SN

Number

34 33

\ 201819 2019-20 |
/ UK \
B

Number

HE

1,005 1,412

P N

Qualifications Assessment

B P 1

B A /) BRI E
(20194481 H—20204¢34314)

/ France \
B

Number

#E

36 42

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /
/ Philippines \
JFEE

Number

#E

o1 &7

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /

BESM LR EENER

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /
/ Mainland China \
IR

Number

HE

1,160 1,080

\ 201819 2019-20 |
/ USA \
xH

Number

E4E|

459 390

/ Hong Kong \
PEIEE

Number

#A

42 36

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /
South Africa
f F3E

Number

EqS|

134 124

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /
/ New Zealand \
paiil |

Number

#E

58 89

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /
Others
H

Number

3017 260

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /

512 588

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /

\ 2018-19 2019-20 /

Total @&

5,043
4,805

2019-20
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Qualifications Assessment

B

Place of Award of Major Qualifications assessed and
considered as meeting the standard of comparable
qualifications under HKQF (1 April 2019-31 March 2020)*

2018-19

Place of Award of Major Qualifications
ITEEFRKME

rate

° Australia B
) Canada INEX
o Mainland China RElR i
° New Zealand 78R
) South Africa B3k
°® Taiwan &8
([ UK ¥H
() USA =HE
*  The qualifications assessment is neither an institutional nor a programme accreditation,

and the result relates only to the qualifications of the individual applicant being assessed.
Yearly Totals

In the reporting period, HKCAAVQ conducted 4,825 qualifications
assessments, a slight drop of 4.3% when compared to the figure of 5,043
in the previous year.

Source of Applications

The number of applications mainly composes of “General Purpose” and
“Teacher Registration Purpose” applications from individuals as well as
organisations such as international schools and learmning centres in Hong
Kong. These two types of applications aim to facilitate applicants seeking
further studies and employment opportunities including local teaching
positions in Hong Kong. The volume of applications primarily hinge on
the local employment market, the private school sector and learning
centres community in Hong Kong.
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Comparable

FHE SRR E
ZBDL

FEA 4 BIF AT 45 & B B IFLE 18 T IS 8
BRI E (2019F 4.5 1 H—2020
FEIH31H)*

2019-20
Comparable
rate

HRESHEHBE
ZESL

94.3%
100%
100%
98.3%
100%
98%
96.7%
95.1%
* BEELERRSRETE  RUTEERAE
AR 3E
SEA
EREERE - FERHHEEES,825 R BT
FI5E - B L5043 REABMKA3%
B AR
B FE R4 A 5 X E R B A RS (5120 BT

BREBEF L) 2 —RA®E | R AT
KNI AR | - EMERAHEE
BBN R B AR S - U RIEAKE - B
RIHRBRAL - ABRBELR X AE
M5 ARABIL BRI B RHE L
BSESZ
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Level and Place of Award of Qualifications

The majority of qualifications assessed are Bachelor Degrees. However,
the numbers of Master Degrees/Postgraduate Diplomas/Certificates/
Doctoral Degrees assessed were comparable to last year's numbers;
and this could be attributed to the ability of the local economy to attract
holders of higher qualifications to come to Hong Kong.

The United Kingdom and Mainland China remained the two major places
of awards for the qualifications assessed by our services. The numbers of
qualifications from Australia and Taiwan continued to grow. The figures
recorded for the awards from Mainland China and Taiwan followed an
established trend suggesting that increasing graduates were returning to
Hong Kong after their studies.

Enhanced Public Awareness of Qualifications Assessment Service

HKCAAVQ continued to reach out to the community to enhance
public understanding of our principles and processes in conducting
qualifications assessment over the reporting period. Talks were held for
various stakeholders including career teachers, students and parents.
More information is also now made available for students regarding
qualifications assessment through study pathway guidebooks etc.

Authentication of Degree Certificates of Qualifications

HKCAAVQ continued to work closely with awarding institutions to
authenticate applicants’ qualifications. Apart from awarding institutions,
we increased the usage of national resource centres to authenticate
qualifications and hence fake qualifications were detected. During the
reporting period, we identified eight cases of fake qualifications which
were reported to the Hong Kong Police for reference and necessary
follow-up.

Reasons for Non-assessable Qualifications Assessment

Although the number of qualifications assessed and considered by our
QA Service as meeting the standard of comparable qualifications under
HKQF is high, there are a large number of applications that contain
qualifications that are not assessable by our QA Service. In the reporting
period, a total of 567 applications were not deemed as non-assessable
by our QA Service due to: (a) the qualifications not being recognised
in the home countries/areas; (b) the qualifications were fake; (c) the
applicants were not able to provide sufficient information; and (d) the
applicants voluntarily decided to withdraw their applications.
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Qualifications Assessment
BT i

EREERERBE

REDREXFENRERE LB - A
TEBERERBLRMN  REXE EBE
HE LR PRFRBEEFAELY - ErI8E
EHRAEEERIREEALREBEZR
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SLEM R BT 7R R B AT A AR o W ffE = 2
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FREIEN - FEMABRERE ANBEH
FRARERR  EAEESZTESEE
BEXZEEHER -

REARYBEENERELTE

FERERA - ROVEB R EEAE - AR
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FHa RSB RIFA MRS - AR R
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AEREBETBEREETIAE - UiE
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Qualifications Assessment

B ¥

Major Developments

The QA i-Portal is the default web-platform for applicants to submit their
applications and make payment online as well as for our QA Service to
provide an update on the progress of their applications. The capacity of
QA i-Portal has allowed the QA Service to better serve our applicants/
stakeholders. The integration of the QA i-Portal and HKCAAVQ's
Quality Management System (QMS) has greatly enhanced our service
effectiveness and efficiency.

Future Initiatives/Priorities

HKCAAVQ's Country/Area Profiles (CAPs) provide comprehensive
information on the eight main countries/areas with which qualifications
assessments are primarily conducted, namely: Australia, Canada,
Mainland China, New Zealand, South Africa, Taiwan, the United Kingdom
and the United States of America. The CAPs have greatly enhanced
the efficiency and effectiveness of our work in quality assurance; and
it is important that the CAPs are timely updated in response to the
changes occurred in related jurisdictions to ensure they provide the most
up-to-date relevant information to both our assessors and stakeholders.

With the CAPs firmly established as the main assessment tool and
information sources on non-local qualifications; and the QA i-Portal as the
main platform to reach out to our applicants/stakeholders, HKCAAVQ will
explore ways to integrate the two, i.e. to continue the ongoing research
and development of the CAPs and to provide CAP information through
the QA i-Portal to better inform our applicants/stakeholders.
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B 5T {4 5 QA i-Portal /2 fit B 55 AR X BR 7E
MERERNEIMLERE YR LRHEAR
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QUALIFICATIONS FRAMEWORK AND QUALIFICATIONS REGISTER (QFQR)

Being the public face of the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework (QF),
the Qualification Register (QR) is a centralised web-based register
containing information of QF-recognised qualifications and their associated
providers. As a web-based tool for searching quality assured qualifications
in the planning and pursuit of life-long learning, QR serves as a useful
information source to help learners make informed choices on selecting
suitable programmes and plan their progression pathways. HKCAAVQ
has been designated in the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications Ordinance (Cap. 592) as the QR Authority for developing
and maintaining the QR in support of the QF.

Key Figures

Management of QR Records

ER MR ERE

ERRABREERM

BEEZMBLERNE  EEERBHARN
| RHEBEERBRANEE  #£EBR
ft LEERREBNEEEN  2RERER
2 MARBIEARERBEEHIEE - AlE

BEMERE - FERI(SMEBEEREF
FEIRH(FESNE) THENEELMER
BEERMEREREAN  AEAEERE
TR -

No. of Qualifications on QR (March figures)
BERAMEHEREE GANET)

QR Hit Rate (Annual Growth)
BRAMEBEER(FIBERE)

No. of QR Batches Uploaded
LERERAMHERESE

No. of Misleading QF Related Advertisement
WREREEREREHE

FEHT
2018-2019 2019-2020
8,523 8,028
6.36% 4.93%
1,374 1,039
3 9

Number of Qualifications on QR by Operator Type of

Accreditation Status

BERENFTFRRE D NEEE

HKCAAVQ-accredited Operators
KATERAENEHE

PAA Operators
EBENBEFEERNERE
Assessment Agencies

RREL: 25

Self-accrediting Operators
BITAPENEME

No. of Qualifications on QR
BRAM EHERESE

3,509 2,807
1,019 1,299
810 753
3,185 3,169
8,523 8,028

Number of Qualifications on QR by QF Level

REREBRANESTHNEREE

QF Levels 1-4

BREES R 245 6,174 5,599

QF Levels 5-7

BRRELRISETR 2,349 2,429

No. of Qualifications on QR

ERZMENERFEEE 8,523 8,028
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Qualifications Framework and Qualifications Register (QFQR)
BREEENRERAM

Number of Qualifications on QR by CAT Arrangement and

by Operator Type of Accreditation Status

BESRMREBRFENERENTERRE S NEEHE

MERPRBRER(RBR)K RBHRBEREBCBEERERT)
From Self-accrediting Operators
BITRIE S ERX

From HKCAAVQ-accredited and PAA Operators

K ERE I EHENSETEERNEHERX
With CAT (Institutional)
MEZ2SRBEREZ(BRR)

From Self-accrediting Operators
BITRIEM 2 HE AR

From HKCAAVQ-accredited and PAA Operators
KAERTELAEENGEETEEARNEHERE

With CAT (Programme) and/or CAT (Recognition of Prior Learning)

62 235
60 95
2 140
1,960 2,981
1,908 1,885
52 1,096

Major Developments
Development of CAT centralised database

Since the launch of the CAT centralised database in October 2018, about
40% of the qualifications listed in QR now include CAT information of
various types. HKCAAVQ will continue to provide assistance to facilitate
the provision and upload of CAT data onto the QR to enrich the database.

In response to the feedback from stakeholders and to meet the needs of
operators, enhancements were developed and launched for the database
by (a) uplifting the maximum number of sending qualifications of
individual receiving programme to 150; (b) introducing a sorting function
in CAT Search Result Listing to differentiate receiving programmes
from sending qualifications; and (c) enhancing the presentation of CAT
information of programmes offered by multiple training bodies under the
Employee Retaining Board (ERB).

Launch of QR Infographics

The QR Infographics was launched in October 2019 to provide a real-
time and quick overview of the nature of the current qualifications on
the QR in terms of their Quality Assurance (QA) Status, QF Level, Area of
Study and Training, and Types of CAT. The QR Infographics also provides
monthly historical data on QR starting from April 2019.
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EBHESREREETRENENERE
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)EH °
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RR&FR - #EhEREEE 2% (—)
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Z150f8 : (Z)ERD RRELREBRISERR
MEIER DIV - HEARA LB R AER
BERKERE  MM(=Z)EEBHIBES
RSB EFRMHRE BB 0 RENE
BEMRRER -

EHEEEZMERE

FEREN2019F10 AL EFZMERE -
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BERFMN - BEELR - 25 REFIHE
BB UKESZELRERER - BRERED
o Ltoh - AP INAI BB B2019F4 A#E -
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Qualifications Framework and Qualifications Register (QFQR)

Future Developments/Priorities

Indication of QF credit for Programmes at QF Levels 5 to 7 on QR

EDB announced in June 2019 the implementation of “Indication of QF
Credit for Learning Programmes at QF Levels 5 to 7 on Qualifications
Register (QR)". To support the implementation of the policy, QFQR
maintained close communication with and provided support to the
concerned operators, to ensure that QF credit will be indicated for the
relevant programmes according to the timeline set by the EDB. For
self-accrediting operators, the indication is voluntary. Nonetheless, as a
general reference, starting from September 2020, a system-built remark
indicating the relevant range of credits will be displayed on the QR
for full-time four-year Bachelor's degree and full-time one-year taught
Master's degree programmes without the indication of QF credit.

System Enhancement for Local Joint Programmes

HKCAAVQ launched the accreditation service for programmes leading to
awards jointly conferred and delivered in Hong Kong by two institutions as
award granting bodies and operators in October 2019. In support of the
new service, a system modification will be made to the QR to facilitate
the data input/upload, display and reporting of such programmes.
The moadification is currently under development and is targeted to be
launched on the QR by mid-2020.

Development of QR Mobile

In view of the growing trend of using mobile devices in daily life,
particularly among the youth groups, a mobile friendly version of the QR is
currently under development. Target user of the QR mobile is the general
public. Keyword search functions and important information of the QF
and QR will be made available in both the desktop and mobile versions.
The QR mobile will also incorporate commonly used features to make it
more user-friendly and easy-to-navigate. The QR mobile is expected to
be launched by end of 2020.
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RESEARCH & TRAINING
fF 5% B £ 5

2018-19

717 specialists ZE X

2019-20

607 specialists FEx

Number of Appointed Specialists
TERER

2018-19

56 sessions 35X

2019-20

48 sessions &)X

Number of Capacity building activities
EAEE

2,081 1,456
_ participants - participants
2018-19 |em 2019-20 | *

Major Developments

Study on International Experiences of Implementing Vocational
Degree/Applied Degree

To provide input to the review of the future development of vocational
and professional education and training undertaken by the Task Force
on Promotion of Vocational and Professional Education and Training
(the Task Force), HKCAAVQ was commissioned by the EDB to conduct a
research study on international experiences of implementing vocational/
applied degrees in July 2019. The study shed light on the key features
of vocational/applied degrees, as well as their implementation in other
jurisdictions. Taking into account the findings of the study, the Task Force
submitted its Review Report to the Government in January 2020.

Consultancy Study on Veterinary Qualification Accreditation
Systems

In 2010, HKCAAVQ was commissioned by the Agriculture, Fisheries and
Conservation Department (AFCD) to conduct a three-year comparative
study of veterinary qualifications that aimed at reviewing the minimum
requirements for registration as a veterinary surgeon in Hong Kong. In
July 2019, drawing on the experience from the previous study, HKCAAVQ
was commissioned by AFCD again to conduct another consultancy study
on veterinary qualification accreditation systems to further review the
minimum requirements for registration as a veterinary surgeon in Hong
Kong. The current study covers a review of the accreditation standards
and system of the Australasian Veterinary Boards Council as compared
with the American Veterinary Medical Association and the Royal College
of Veterinary Surgeons.
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External Review by the European Association for Quality
Assurance in Higher Education (ENQA)

Following the external review conducted by the International Network for
Quality Assurance Agencies in Higher Education (INQAAHE), INQAAHE
confirmed in 2015 that HKCAAVQ comprehensively adheres to the
Guidelines of Good Practice in Quality Assurance developed by INQAAHE.

In May 2019, the HKCAAVQ Council approved to engage the European
Association for Quality Assurance in Higher Education (ENQA) to conduct
an external review of HKCAAVQ against the Standards and Guidelines
for Quality Assurance in the European Higher Education Area (ESG). A
project team was set up, led by the Head of Research and Training, to
carry out the self-assessment against the standards of ESG and prepare
for the site visit of the review panel. An extensive range of qualitative and
quantitative information was compiled and analysed as part of the self-
assessment report. Other preparations are underway.

Capacity Building for Stakeholders

Training is a statutory function of HKCAAVQ aiming to equip the
operators, specialists and staff members of HKCAAVQ with a good
understanding of the accreditation standards and process, supporting the
development of the HKQF. HKCAAVQ provides training to operators and
specialists in the form of regular, thematic and tailormade workshops. A
summary of the capacity building sessions conducted during the reporting
period for operators, specialists and staff is provided below:
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Research & Training
5% K sl

Workshop on Academic Governance in Higher Education

As a capacity building service to the higher education community,
HKCAAVQ invited Professor Hilary Winchester, Specialist of HKCAAVQ, to
conduct a full-day thematic training workshop on Academic Governance
in Higher Education in September 2019. After defining the roles of
academic governance, Professor Winchester examined the key issues
relating to the effectiveness of academic boards, their structure and
functioning. The discussion also highlighted the inter-relationships
between corporate governance, executive management and academic
governance. Over thirty participants from both self-accrediting and non-
self-accrediting higher education institutions attended the workshop.

Training Workshop on Use of QF Credit

EDB announced in mid-2019 the implementation of indicating QF Credit
for learning programmes at QF Levels 5 to 7 on the QR from 2020
onwards. To familiarise relevant staff of both self-accrediting and non-
self-accrediting operators with the principles of QF Credit assignment
and assessment, HKCAAVQ was commissioned by EDB to conduct three
repeated sessions of training workshop on Use of QF Credit between
December 2019 and January 2020. During the sessions, observations
from different sources, such as QR data, local and/or international
practices, and literature were shared with the participants. A total of 177
participants attended the three sessions. Among the participants, 69%
were academic and administrative staff of self-accrediting institutions.
Participants rated positively about different aspects of the workshop,
including the training objectives, contents and delivery.

Transition to Online Training

It has been a strategic direction of HKCAAVQ to enhance its training
provisions by adopting technologies. In 2019, the HKCAAVQ Specialist
Online Learning Platform (SOLP) was launched. Since then, induction
training was conducted online for Specialists. SOLP provides enhanced
flexibility to all newly-appointed Specialists to attend induction training
anywhere anytime.
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In response to the Government's call for social distancing to avoid the
spread of COVID-19 in the community, all face-to-face regular briefings
and workshops for operators were converted into live webinars within
February. When evaluating different webinar platforms, the focus was
placed on the features for supporting live interaction between the trainer
and participants, as well as facilitating the administration procedures such
as registration, participants support and post-event evaluation. A browser-
based platform was eventually selected. By adopting a browser-based
platform, participants are not required to install any additional software,
therefore reducing the support required and security risks. In addition
to slide presentation, the platform provides live chat room, whiteboard,
online poll/survey and audio/video discussion to allow high interaction
between the trainer and participants. HKCAAVQ also set up a studio to
provide high-quality audio/visual experience.

During the reporting period, five online briefings/workshops were
conducted with 138 participants. Overall satisfaction remains high (4.2
out of 5) when compared with the face-to-face mode.
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Participants’ view on the quality of the regular and thematic training activities of HKCAAVQ
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* Mean score is calculated from the participants’ degree of agreement with the statement
“the overall quality of the event was high”, where score 5 indicates “strongly agree” and
score 1 indicates “strongly disagree”.
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Appointment and Engagement of Specialists

Peer review is one of the guiding principles of HKCAAVQ and is at
the heart of our accreditation process. Under this principle, HKCAAVQ
maintains a pool of specialists to support its accreditation and assessment
services.

At the end of the reporting period, 607 specialists were listed in
the Specialists Register covering all 14 Areas of Study and Training.
The overall utilisation of Specialists was 85%. To meet the business
development needs, HKCAAVQ will continue to identify prospective
Specialists from our established networks locally and around the globe.

Distribution of Specialists (local vs. non local)
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Future Developments/Priorities R E A5 K

Research and training contribute to continuous enhancement of
efficiency and effectiveness of HKCAAVQ, through transfer of quality
assurance knowledge and experience, evaluation of users’ experience,
and generation of insights from accreditation data analysis. In a highly
dynamic environment, research and training are particularly important
for developing the organisational agility required to meet the future
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ENGAGEMENT AND COLLABORATION

HKCAAVQ places prime importance on building strong links with a wide
range of stakeholders not only to keep abreast of the latest developments
in various sectors and industries, but also to share our quality assurance
practices with education and training institutions, government
authorities, partner agencies and members of the public both locally
and internationally. We support this strategic objective by reaching out to
stakeholders through dialogue and active engagement.

Local Engagement

HKCAAVQ organises different activities to inform the stakeholders about
the latest developments in our services and to promote and disseminate
good practices in quality assurance. By invitation, we participate in
activities organised by partnering organisations to share experience and
promote mutual understanding. We also take the initiatives to provide
trainings, workshops and briefings all year round to build capacity of our
key stakeholders.

HKCAAVQ Spring Lunch 2020

This Luncheon was the first of the series of celebrative initiatives for our
30th Anniversary. The gathering was officiated by Secretary for Education,
Mr Kevin Yeung JP. Professor Simon Ho, President of the Hang Seng
University of Hong Kong, as the Guest-of-honor, delivered a keynote
speech. Details are available on HKCAAVQ website.

HKCAAVQ speaks at FSTE-OHKF Applied Education
Forum

The Federation for Self-financing Tertiary Education (FSTE) and Our Hong
Kong Foundation (OHKF) jointly organised the Applied Education Forum,
on 6 December 2019. Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director of HKCAAVQ,
was a panelist and invited to share his insights into the possible way
forward on Applied Education in Hong Kong. Details are available on
HKCAAVQ website.

Student Liaison Meetings

Since 2017, HKCAAVAQ invited accredited higher education institutions
to nominate up to two representatives from their student body (e.g.
student union/association/society) to attend student liaison meetings
at HKCAAVQ. These student representatives are current students of the
institutions with a general awareness of the higher education sector and/
or experience in representing students in quality assurance activities. Two
meetings were held on 26 April and 5 July 2019 with the participation
of over 20 student representatives from more than 15 self-financing
institutions in each meeting.
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https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavq-spring-luncheon-2020
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/events/hkcaavq-speaks-at-fste-ohkf-applied-education-forum
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavq-spring-luncheon-2020
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavq-spring-luncheon-2020
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/events/hkcaavq-speaks-at-fste-ohkf-applied-education-forum
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Engagement and Collaboration

HINEBMAE

In the meetings, HKCAAVQ introduced its services, Four-Stage Quality
Assurance Process, accreditation standards and details of the process
of accreditation to students, shared recent developments in the higher
education sector, and explored ways in which students may provide
input to HKCAAVQ's quality assurance process. In response to student
representatives’ feedback, a workshop on “Dialogue with HKCAAVQ
Specialist” was conducted. HKCAAVQ invited Professor Charles Kwong of
Lingnan University to share his views about student voice in the higher
education sector in Hong Kong. The meetings were well received by
student representatives.

HKCAAVQ also devised a range of initiatives for student representatives.
For instance, HKCAAVQ organised a summer internship programme in
July and August 2019 with six students having been offered opportunities
to gain direct exposure to the work of HKCAAVQ. Information about
international good practice of student engagement in academic quality
assurance is shared with the students via an e-platform. A VQ Club has
also been formed to promote a sense of belonging for students beyond
the meetings.

Looking ahead, HKCAAVQ would continue to organize various activities
for students to broaden their knowledge and understanding of the QA
process of higher education. Activities in the pipeline include regular
student liaison meetings, thematic workshops/briefing sessions and
summer internships.

Learn more about Student voice.
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http://www.studyinhongkong.edu.hk/hk
http://www.studyinhongkong.edu.hk/hk

Other communication platforms

HKCAAVQ nurtures its close working relationship with the quality
assurance community in Hong Kong and reinforces the communication
with the local and international communities through newsletters and
websites.

Newly launched features on HKCAAVQ are available on HKCAAVQ
website.

Regional and International Engagement

HKCAAVQ renews Memorandum of Cooperation with TEQSA

This marks the third signing of the Memorandum of Cooperation (MoC)
between HKCAAVQ and the Tertiary Education Quality and Standards
Agency, Australia (TEQSA) since 2013. Details are available on HKCAAVQ
website.

HKCAAVQ renews Memorandum of Understanding with ASQA

HKCAAVQ renewed the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with
the Australian Skills Quality Authority (ASQA), since the two agencies
first entered into an MoU in 2016. Details are available on HKCAAVQ
website.

HKCAAVQ delivers keynote address at International Symposium -
Quality Assurance and Qualifications Framework for Professional
Higher Education

The International Symposium, which took place in Tokyo on 26
November 2019, was organized by the Institution for Accreditation and
Quality Assurance of Professional Higher Education (QAPHE). The theme
of the Symposium was “Quality Assurance and Qualifications Framework
for Professional Higher Education”. Dr Christina Ng, Head and Senior
Registrar of Vocational and Professional Accreditation, was invited to
attend and as keynote speaker to present on the topic “Quality Assurance
and Quality Enhancement for Vocational and Professional Education and
Training under the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework”. Details are
available on HKCAAVQ website.
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https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/news/launch-of-photo-gallery-on-hkcaavq-website
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavq-renews-memorandum-of-cooperation-with-teqsa
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/news/hkcaavq-renews-memorandum-of-understanding-with-asqa
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavq-invited-to-give-keynote-speech-at-qaphe-international-symposium-in-tokyo
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/news/launch-of-photo-gallery-on-hkcaavq-website
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/news/launch-of-photo-gallery-on-hkcaavq-website
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavq-renews-memorandum-of-cooperation-with-teqsa
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavq-renews-memorandum-of-cooperation-with-teqsa
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/news/hkcaavq-renews-memorandum-of-understanding-with-asqa
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/news/hkcaavq-renews-memorandum-of-understanding-with-asqa
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/events/hkcaavq-invited-to-give-keynote-speech-at-qaphe-international-symposium-in-tokyo
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HKCAAVQ speaks at the International Forum hosted by KSQA in
Seoul

The Korea Skills Quality Authority (KSQA) invited the HKCAAVQ
delegation to attend and speak at the 2019 International Forum
TVET, titled "TVET: Open the Future” on 4 December 2019 in Seoul.
Dr Christina Ng, Head of Vocational and Professional Accreditation
presented the "Development of Vocational and Professional Education
and Training under Hong Kong Qualifications Framework”. Besides
having experts sharing ways to improve the quality of vocational training,
seek cooperation and countermeasures for globalisation, the forum also
offered insights into the trends and the future direction of the global
vocational training market.

Leveraging the opportunity to become more familiar with the VPET
development in Korea, the delegation also met with representatives
from KSQA and visited a work-based training provider, Korea Financial
Investment Association and an e-learning provider, Multicampus.

And with the plan and will of establishing regular dialogue with KSQA
since the exchanges between KSQA and HKCAAVQ during the last
reporting period, a working group between the two agencies was
formed. Two videoconferences were conducted in 2019 with KSQA to
share insights on the accreditation exercises and best practices in both
jurisdictions.

Moving forward, KSQA and HKCAAVQ plan to sign an MOU to foster
closer collaboration. KSQA and HKCAAVQ plan to continue the on-
going communication and discussion through the videoconferences this
year and by mapping out topics that interest both agencies. Details are
available on HKCAAVQ website.

HKCAAVQ speaks at APEC Online Education Workshop 2019

Dr Alan Wu, Head of Research and Training of HKCAAVQ, was invited
to present at the Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation (APEC) Online
Education Workshop in Hanoi, Vietnam. Details are available on
HKCAAVQ website.

HKCAAVQ visits the Taipei Economic and Cultural Office in Hong
Kong to promote qualifications assessment

In the fourth quarter of 2019, the QA paid a courtesy visit to the Taipei
Economic and Cultural Office in Hong Kong to promote the QA Service
and to discuss issues relating to Hong Kong students pursuing further
study in Taiwan. During the visit, the latest educational/credential
evaluation developments were also explained to address the frequently
asked questions from students.
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HKCAAVQ representatives are regularly invited to give keynote speeches
and deliver presentations at local and international events. A list of the
events attended is included in the table below:
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Title of presentation/Theme of conference Presenter (s) Month/Year
REER g3xE HEE
The Applied Education Forum Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director 12/2019
FER# A RIE RBEFEHLE
KSQA International Conference 2019 Dr Christina Ng, Head and Senior Registrar of 12/2019
B RS RRERERERRE2019 Vocational and Professional Accreditation
BEEBERIXEERFTE)
REAZEL
QAPHE International Symposium 2019 Dr Christina Ng, Head and Senior Registrar of 11/2019
QAPHE BJfZ5%1E2019 Vocational and Professional Accreditation
BEIEBERBXERNE)
REAZELT
APEC Online Education Workshop Dr Alan Wu, Head of Research and Training 11/2019
DAREBES (EREI A8 25 T ] B (R RIE)
A BN+
Taiwan Higher Education Fair 2019 Mr Andrew Ho, Head of Qualifications Assessment 10/2019
AEREHER2019 HBEE(BRET)
fAfEELE
Seminar on Use of Credit and Credit Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director 10/2019
Accumulation and Transfer (CAT) under BHREREHLE
Qualifications Framework (QF)
BREBDERANED ZENEGHEE
ENIC and NARIC joint meeting Mr Robert Fearnside, 06/2019
BOM{E EP/MW%& 1 BRI R BT ARE BT the then Deputy Executive Director (Academic)
/L\/\Tﬁz’; 2 RIS (21i)
Mr Steve Lai, General Manager, Qualifications
Framework Secretariat
BRERBWERBKIBRERE L
Greater Bay Area Qualifications Framework Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director 06/2019
Discussion Forum BBERAEHLE
EERAN RS R ES Dr Christina Ng, Head of Vocational and Professional
Accreditation
BEIEBEREEEFTE)
REFEEL
Going Global Conference 2019 Mr Robert Fearnside, 05/2019
Going Global &#2019 the then Deputy Executive Director (Academic)
R LRl = (21i7)
Dr Fabrizio Trifiro, the then International Manager of
the Quality Assurance Agency for Higher Education
(QAA)
Quiality Assurance Agency for Higher Education Mr Robert Fearnside, 05/2019
(QAA) Annual Conference the then Deputy Executive Director (Academic)
RESSHEEERERBFESSR FrERl = (21i7)
Chartered Mission Reception Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director 4/2019
S EENS e BT
Chartered Management Institute Roundtable Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director 4/2019
ERprEReAEEes BREEBEREE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE COUNCIL MEMBERS OF

HONG KONG COUNCIL FOR ACCREDITATION OF

ACADEMIC AND VOCATIONAL QUALIFICATIONS
ERBMRBXERTER

(Established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic
and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Council for
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (the “Council”)
set out on pages 76 to 117, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in reserves and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2020, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Council in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The council members are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BUZBMRES

Responsibilities of Council Members and Those
Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The council members are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the council members
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the council members are
responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the council members
either intend to liquidate the Council or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Council's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 15 of the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic
and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Cap. 1150), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

« lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the council members.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the council members' use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Council to cease to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 September 2020
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EHWEKR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H#E—T-TF=F=+—HAItFE

2020 2019
HKS &% HK$ &1
Income YA
Revenue &3 A 95,930,430 90,350,440
Government grants R 74 Bh 7,317,111 6,092,790
Investment income & & YA 2,590,848 2,034,570
Other income E AUz A 22,270 13,932
105,860,659 98,491,732
Expenditures X 1
Staff costs B T4 (58,424,379)  (60,720,667)
Administrative expenses 77 & (13,557,094)  (12,481,243)
Direct accreditation/consultancy costs & #7728, Ba R A AR (10,313,247) (9,935,034)
Council meeting and committee expenses AR EENMEE ST H (891,546) (1,028,285)
(83,186,266)  (84,165229)
Surplus for the year N FE ZE 4 22,674,393 14,326,503
Other comprehensive income HE 2 FEUxF
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
HETEEN P HEZ1EmEE -
Fair value gain on investments in equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
NAanBEEstE BEEH A M2 EKER
BamTAREZ AR EBEYRS 374,750 237,450
Other comprehensive income for the year N E H 1 2 H Uk 374,750 237,450
Total comprehensive income for the year XFEE2HKFE S 23,049,143 14,563,953
URANCE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B R IR 0 2R

At 31 March2020 A—ZE-ZF=F=+—H
NOTES Mzt 2020 2019
HKS$ %% HKE &%
Non-current assets JEREN & =
Fixed assets EE & E 10 5,224,681 8,006,157
Investments &% & 11 39,560,826 39,995,060
44,785,507 48,001,217
Current assets R E1& &=
Investments % & 11 10,030,203 -
Accounts and other receivables & U B 30 E g 3k 12 14,908,820 10,907,485
Contract assets & #)& & 13 72,528 519,244
Bank deposits and cash $87717 5 R IR & 14 86,029,252 72,094,135
111,040,803 83,520,864
Current liabilities & & &
Deferred government grants JEXE B fiF # B) 15 1,773,044 2,617,111
Contract liabilities & #) & (& 16 20,608,634 15,771,425
Other payables and accruals E t fE -8R 5% & FE 5+ A 5,057,016 4,869,673
Provision for staff gratuities 8 T 4R Bi& 24 17 2,673,391 4,785,073
30,112,085 28,043,282
Net current assets i EE& & E{E 80,928,718 55,477,582
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERAHER 125,714,225 103,478,799
Reserves f#& 18
Accumulated surpluses 2528 - 97,651,587
General reserve —fi& 41 83,000,000 -
Designated reserve $87E 37,325,980 -
Investment revaluation reserve & &L & 374,750 -
Total reserves fZ{&E4 %5 120,700,730 97,651,587
Non-current liabilities JE 7B A &
Deferred government grants i& {EEX AT 7 B) 15 1,973,459 3,746,503
Provision for staff gratuities 8 T #)jm Bl & & 17 3,040,036 2,080,709
5,013,495 5,827,212
125,714,225 103,478,799

The financial statements on pages 76 to 117 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Council members and are signed on its behalf
by:

\Mostlhen___

Chairman
By

BREM LB EERENER

AEKEIETRETISRNEICE11TEZ
FiEmE - WA THIALTRERE

Executive Director

BBE
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES

CRE- LIRS

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H#E—T-TF=F=+—HAItFE

Investment
Accumulated General Designated revaluation
surpluses reserve reserve reserve Total
Rt % —REE EERE REERGRE CE
HKS B HKS &% HKS 8% HKS 75 HKS &%
(note (a)) (note (b))
(Hiit)) (hi2®))

At 1 Apiil 2018 RZE—\EMA—H 78,975,124 - - 4112510 83,087,634
Surplus for the year K%F;ﬁ*mﬁ% 14,326,503 - - - 14,326,503
Other comprehensive income for the year N4 & E it 2 F iz - - - 237,450 237,450
Total comprehensive income for the year N[ 2 EZEA &t 14,326,503 - - 237,450 14,563,953
Disposal of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
HENARBEMEEEZSF AR M2 ARG BETARE 4,349,960 - - (4,349,960) -
At31 March 2019 R=F—AF=A=1—H 97,651,587 - - - 97,651,587
Surplus for the year KA Z 2284 22,674,393 - - - 22674393
Other comprehensive income for the year K5 & £t 2 zE - - - 374,750 374,750
Total comprehensive income for the year "N E 2 E A5t 22,674,393 - - 374750 23,049,143
Transfer from accumulated surpluses at 1 April 2019
R-E—NFNA—B A2 AHEA (97,651,587) 84,000,000 13,651,587 - -
Transfer from accumulated surpluses for the year
AEEARFRHER (22,674393)  (1,000,000) 23,674,393 - -
At31 March 2020 A= ZE-ZFF=A=1—H - 83000000 37325980 374,750 120,700,730
Note: Mt -
(@ The general reserve has been established since 1 April 2019 in order to meet  (a) —MEBHE_T—NFMA—BRERYL - AEH

operational contingencies and to safeguard the Council's ability to continue as a going
concern. It is transferred to or from the accumulated surplus up to the actual annual
operating expenditure (excluding any future depreciation charges of the related assets
under the designated reserve) as at the year ended of reporting periods (rounded to
the nearest million). The general reserve is available for general use and can be utilised
at the discretion of the Council.

EELNREFERHRAROP BT EBRE - %
ERHBINBENFRARNEHEAREL £
FLBRAERNFRELLER S (TRERRNEE
HBTHBEEENNES D) (MEAAZREONT
Bi) - —REBAE—RAR YTHARBTE
A e

(b)  The designated reserve has been established since 1 April 2019 for the future capital by EEBHEIA-Z—NLFNA—BERYL - Une
expenditure requirement on leasehold properties. It is transferred to or from the TEEWEERNARRER T HENR - ZEREETIA
accumulated surplus any surplus in excess of the agreed ceiling of the general reserve. R BHEASNEL - SREABH -REBHE L

Rz &gk -
URANCE
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BeREFER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=—

EoRF=A=+—RALEFE

NOTES #i&# 2020 2019
HK$ &% HK$ &1
Surplus for the year &K E 2 # 22,674,393 14,326,503
Adjustments for: FEIEE :
Depreciation #TE& 3,337,226 3,164,008
Interest income I B A (2,590,848) (2,034,570)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss AR B IRIE {18 507,210 -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
LEECEPNNELRERE 23,927,981 15,455,941
(Increase) decrease in accounts and other receivables
FEYRFME A e R (38 h0) IR (3,728,328) 5,112,772
Decrease in contract assets & 44 27,4 446,716 57,943
Decrease in deferred government grants
R AE B R BR > (2,617,111) (2,269,695)
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities
arna‘EEm Ond) 4,837,209 (3,322,182)
Increase in other payables and accruals
Ho Aty FEAS BR SR AN FE R T & A A0 187,343 552,433
(Decrease) increase in provision for staff gratuities
BTHWMEERE Ofd) 12 (1,152,355) 1,661,986
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RETEESHIR S IFH 21,901,455 17,249,198
INVESTING ACTIVITIES & & E®)
Payment for purchase of fixed assets }& A & F & &=~ 5% (555,750) (1,417,860)
Proceeds from disposal of investments in equity instruments
hERES TAREMSHA - 17,960,650
Payment for purchase of financial assets at amortised costs
RBHRABASREENK - (31,649,743)
Payment for purchase of investments in equity instruments
BARETARERMNK (10,000,000) -
Placement of bank deposits with maturity of more than three
months at acquisition
FA={EA A LB BRI TIF 3K (32,000,000) (16,211,995)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with maturity of more than three
months at acquisition
RRER=1E A A _EBIHIRRITIF R 16,211,995 33,289,189
Interest received
2UAE 2,589,412 1,725,763
QUALITY ASSURANCE
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Statement of Cash Flows

RenEgsR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H{Z - T -—TF=A=+—HILFE

NOTES Ktz 2020 2019
HK$ & HK$ &

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
WEEBEE (FA) MRS FE (23,754,343) 3,696,004
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReMReEEY ORd) BINFEE (1,852,888) 20,945,202
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
EBE4RBESZEY 55,882,140 34,936,938
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
FRRE MNREZEY 14 54,029,252 55,882,140
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 ¥R AR Y 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE -~ E-FH=-A=+—H |t FF

Status of the Council

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications (the “Council”) is a body corporate established
under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Cap. 1150). Under the
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance
(Cap. 592) (the "Ordinance”) the Council assumes its statutory
role as the Accreditation Authority and Qualification Registry (“QR")
Authority under the Qualifications Framework (“QF"). As the
Accreditation Authority, the Council is responsible for developing
and implementing the standards and mechanisms for accreditation
of academic and vocational qualifications to underpin the QF
and for organising the accreditation exercises for the purposes as
specified in the Ordinance. The Council also provides advice to the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
"HKSAR Government”) on the registration of non-local academic
and professional courses, the assessment on non-local qualifications
and also on educational standards and qualifications generally.
The Chairman, Vice-chairman, all other Members and Executive
Director of the Council are appointed by the Chief Executive of the
HKSAR Government. Also, the determination of accreditation fees,
the financial budget and other operating policies of the Council
are approved by the HKSAR Government. Therefore the Council
considers itself to be a government-related entity.

The registered office address is 10 Siu Sai Wan Road, Chai Wan,
Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"),
which is the same as the functional currency of the Council.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 H{Z - T -—TF=A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

The Council has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Council's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

financial statements.

QUALITY ASSURANCE
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Leases

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE -~ E-FH=-A=+—H |t FF

Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2.

Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Council has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 17"), and the
related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Council has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that
were not previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Council has not reassessed contracts which already existed prior to
the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April 2019,
the Council applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract
contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Council has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April
2019.

As at 1 April 2019, the Council recognised additional lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the related lease
liabilities by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised in the opening retained
profits and comparative information has not been restated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BATS¥RR M R

Q

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE -~ ZE-FH=-A=+—H &

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

As a lessee (continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Council applied the following practical
expedients to leases previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the
respective lease contracts:

i.  relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous
by applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets as an alternative of impairment review;

ii.  elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for leases with lease term ends within 12 months of the date
of initial application;

iii.  excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial application; and

iv.  used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at date
of initial application in determining the lease term for the
Council's leases with extension and termination options.

On transition, the Council has elected not to recognise any lease
liabilities nor right of use assets of 1 April 2019 upon application of
HKFRS 16 as the remaining lease terms of its lease amounting to
HK$29 which are disclosed as operating lease commitments as at
31 March 2019 are either ended within twelve months from 1 April
2019 or insignificant to the financial statements. Accounting policies
resulting from application of HKFRS 16 are disclosed in note 3.
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2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 H{Z -~ T —TF=A=+—HILFE

Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Council has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRSs

BREM LB EERENER

Insurance Contracts’

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions®

Definition of a Business?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework>

Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current”

Definition of Material

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use>

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fuffilling a Contract®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform#

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020°
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 H{Z - T -—TF=A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018.
Ilts consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the amendment to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
Council members anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Application of New and Amendments to Hong 2.

Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:
«  reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

+ introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and
a new liability definition that is likely to be broader than the
definition it replaces, but does not change the distinction
between a liability and an equity instrument;

. discusses historical cost and current value measures, and
provides additional guidance on how to select a measurement
basis for a particular asset or liability;

«  states that the primary measure of financial performance is
profit or loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances other
comprehensive income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current value of an
asset or liability; and

. discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the
reporting entity and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that references
in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the New Framework,
whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to the previous versions of
the framework. These amendments are effective for the Council's
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Other than
specific standards which still refer to the previous versions of the
framework, the Council will rely on the New Framework on its
effective date in determining the accounting policies especially for
transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with
under the accounting standards.
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Application of New and Amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material
by including additional guidance and explanations in making
materiality judgments. In particular, the amendments:

« include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating the
information;

«  replace threshold for materiality influencing users from “could
influence” to “could reasonably be expected to influence”; and

« include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than
simply referring to “users” which was considered too broad
when deciding what information to disclose in the financial
statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs and will
be mandatorily effective for the Council's annual period beginning
on 1 January 2020. The application of the amendments is not
expected to have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Council but may affect the presentation and
disclosures in the financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. FESHBERE)

Basis of preparation (continued) mREEE ()

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or AREEEEMS2EE ZHRAER

paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market HETHERFRX R LE—BEEMK

participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that BOERABER - HEEMINHNE
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation % ERZEREERERINGERE

technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, ERAEAMGERIEL GG - 24

the Council takes into account the characteristics of the asset or BEXABENAABEEDMETR - K

liability if market participants would take those characteristics into RERTHS2EENABEHRZE

account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. EXAEETEEREEEENZER

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these B EREFHMERPATEN SHE

financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share- AR EBEDRIEERTURTE - EF

based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 BB EERE 2R BERERZ

Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in 178 [E A I 9 1 ?’X?&% $E'<?F%.5 ot

accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS 17 (before IR 2R 65)‘*( BE-_ZT—hFMA

application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some —BRB) BB ERE 175 (ER

similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable BRPBmELE ﬁ'J% 1658 7 /) 8 E A

value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment WEHERS UREAREBEBEMEN

of Assets. FERRBENE(PINEBGTERSE
SRR A B FERE B G ER
FI6WEEL B E T EVEREEBRIN

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements o - S BHREME - AnEEHS

are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which BREAABEFENGABBRAIHEE

the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and ERARBHEFEMNE AR HLEE
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its MEEUSBERE R F_RIFE=
entirety, which are described as follows: & BEaian T -

«  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets - BB ABBEZEENGEA
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the HH—IL/(HX FIEREEXBENE
measurement date; BIZHMmE(CREHAR)

«  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included s FBIRARASBEREENBER
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, e B R ABE(FE
either directly or indirectly; and —RABERRERIN) - &

+  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. - BZAWABBEEENEENT

AR ABIE -
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P go UL ENANCEMENT



Notes to the Financial Statements

BATS¥RR M R

Q

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE -~ ZE-FH=-A=+—H &

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. FESFHBERGE)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Council recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

«  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Council's performance as the Council
performs;

«  the Council's performance creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Council performs; or

«  the Council's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Council and the Council has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Council's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Council has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Council's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Council's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Council has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Council's efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Council's performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

Performance obligations for revenue from contracts with
customers

Revenue from accreditation services is recognised over time using
input method.

Revenue from advisory services is recognised over time using input
method.

Revenue from consultancy services and qualifications and other
assessment services are recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains the control of the services.

Revenue from qualifications registry services is recognised over
the contract period when the relevant services are provided by the
Council.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Council will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Council recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Council should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic
and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Council with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining term of the lease

Furniture and equipment 5 years

Computer equipment 5 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of fixed assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of fixed assets is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of fixed assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Council reviews the carrying
amounts of its fixed assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if

any).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Council
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Council as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Council applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of office that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

The Council as a lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

The Council is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue of
section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Council has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Council will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of
the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for accounts receivable arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

+  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"):

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting contractual
cash flows; and

«  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 3. FESFBEGE)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred
to accumulated surpluses/will continue to be held in the
investment revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Council's right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “investment income” line item in
profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Council performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including accounts
and other receivables, contract assets and bank deposits) which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Council's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Council always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts receivable
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other instruments, the Council measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Council recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Council compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Council considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

« an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument's external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

«  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

«  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt
obligations;

« an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

«  an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Council presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Council has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE -~ ZE-FH=-A=+—H &

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Council assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Council regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in

credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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(i) Definition of default (i) BAZER

For internal credit risk management, the Council considers an HRABEERRERE - ERNEK
event of default occurs when information developed internally SNEBENE B RABEB AT KA LR
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is BINEREA  BEARBTZR
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Council, in full (without RBRFENEAERY)  KXBK
taking into account any collaterals held by the Council). HREEBENEM -
Irrespective of the above, the Council considers that default e D AT (A - IR R EE
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days BEMEARIEIOKR - ARYRAE
past due unless the Council has reasonable and supportable BHEELY  BRIEABREEERIE
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default MEERPZEB/REREINER
criterion is more appropriate. BB AR o
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

y

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE -~ E-FH=-A=+—H |t FF

3.

(v)

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(®)

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
Write-off policy

The Council writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of accounts receivable, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Council's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

QUALITY ASSURANCE

QUALITY ENHANCEMENT

EXCELLENCE

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined by the respective risks of
default.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Council in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Council expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not
yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

. Past-due status; and
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
+  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each category continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Council recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of accounts receivable where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Council derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Council has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to accumulated surpluses.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Council after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Council are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Council’s financial liabilities, including other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Council derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Council's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Key Source of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Council's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the management are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key source of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Provision of ECL of accounts receivable and contract assets

Accounts receivable and contract assets with significant balances
and credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually. The Council
uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the accounts receivable
and contract assets. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Council’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the accounts receivable and contract
assets are disclosed in notes 12, 13 and 20, respectively.
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5. Revenue 5. Wz
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers (i) REREFHETSNHNKZEER
Type of services PR | A
2020 2019
HKS$ 7&# HK$ 7%
Accreditation services fees 725 iR 75 & 51,281,270 49,214,529
Advisory services fees A RS E 13,894,978 9,319,563
Consultancy services fees A RS & 7,724,155 10,802,177
Qualifications and other assessment fees & % & H i 511 & 18,777,794 17,188,012
Qualifications registry fees & &4 it & 4,252,233 3,826,159
Total #8278 95,930,430 90,350,440
Timing of revenue recognition Wz ERR RS R
2020 2019
HKS &% HK$ 7%
At a point in time FARF [ 25 26,501,949 27,990,189
Overtime FABFREIER 69,428,481 62,360,251
Total #8278 95,930,430 90,350,440
(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance (i) PEERFFHEITSORGRET
obligation for contracts with customers BHX 57 E®
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining unsatisfied RZZFZFF=A=1+—0 " 5k
performance obligations as at 31 March 2020 are EXBRBIIRFTOISERAE
HK$20,608,634 (2019: HK$15,771,425) and the expected #20,608,634TT(—F—NLF : B
timing of recognising revenue is within one year. #15,771,42570) » TRERRERULA
BERER—FA -
6. Investment Income 6. REWA
2020 2019
HKS$ &% HK$ 7%
Interest income F.8.Ug A 2,590,848 2,034,570
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7. Other Income 7. HAWA
2020 2019
HK$ &% HK$ 7%
Review of non-QF Accreditation 3E& 514 RS EH & 13,051 12,527
Foreign exchange gain, net 9N 3 i 25 5 48 = 1,355
Miscellaneous income E b A 9,219 50
22,270 13,932
8. Surplus for the Year 8. XNFEEER
Surplus for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting): RFEERBEHBRGIA) -
2020 2019
HKS$ 7&# HK$ & #

Staff costs 8 TR(A

— Salaries, wages and other benefits —%& T & K E & F 56,941,751 59,260,116

— Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds — 5& 14 A f& & #E 5k 1,482,628 1,460,551

58,424,379 60,720,667

Auditor's remuneration #ZZET BN & 178,382 287,385
Depreciation #7& 3,337,226 3,164,008
Expenses related to short-term leases with lease terms end within

12 months of the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
HAEHEN B RERE B GRS LR

F165% B 12{E A AR M EHHER N T 135,084 -
Minimum lease payments under operating leases S {KAR & T E 7 H - 133,237
Interest income from financial assets at amortised costs
LEE AT 2N R R EE R EIWA (1,273,694) (1,240,468)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 H#E—T-TF=F=+—HAItFE

9. Taxation 9. BiE
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made in these RIBCEBBRIBIROIDES7IE - NRERH
financial statements as the Council is exempted from taxation B - EHBAEVERRTIRES
pursuant to section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. MSH
10. Fixed Assets 10. EIEEE
Leasehold Furniture and Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total

HERR REMNRE BiEE k)

HKS & HK$ A HK$ 71 HKS &
COST JAR
At 1 April 2018 R=Z—\FEMA—H 31,083,553 7,222,641 13,185,824 51,492,018
Additions R & - 96,100 1,801,580 1,897,680
Disposals & - (575,255) - (575,255)
At31 March 2019 R-ZE—hE=ZA=+—H 31,083,553 6,743,486 14,987,404 52,814,443
Additions R & - 28,400 527,350 555,750
At 31 March 2020 AZZ=ZF=HA=+—H 31,083,553 6,771,886 15,514,754 53,370,193
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z:H#7E
At T April 2018 R=Z—/\FNA—H 31,083,553 6,831,402 4,304,578 42,219,533
Charge for the year AFEHE - 254,467 2,909,541 3,164,008
Eliminated on disposal i} &4 - (575,255) - (575,255)
At31 March 2019 R=E—NEFE=A=+—H 31,083,553 6,510,614 7,214,119 44,808,286
Charge for the year ﬁig?ﬁ% - 235,061 3,102,165 3,337,226
At 31 March 2020 R=ZZE=Z&F=A=+—H 31,083,553 6,745,675 10,316,284 48,145,512
NET BOOK VALUE BRT#E
At31 March 2020 RZZEZEF=A=+—H - 26,211 5,198,470 5,224,681
At31 March 2019 R-ZE—hE=ZA=+—H - 232,872 7,773,285 8,006,157
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z =%

12.

—NFE=ZA=t—RILFE

1. Investments 11. ®E
2020 2019
HKS$ 7% HKE &%
Debt instruments — financial assets at amortised costs
BEIA - REHEKATECERERE 39,216,279 39,995,060
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
NAREBEAZEEEH I ALMEZERE R TEIRE 10,374,750 -
49,591,029 39,995,060
Analysed as: DT A
Non-current 3E7RED 39,560,826 39,995,060
Current 7R &) 10,030,203 -
49,591,029 39,995,060
Fair value of financial assets at amortised costs
RHHERAT ECERMEEN AR BE 39,883,148 40,076,165
Accounts and Other Receivables 12. FEWERA A H i FE UK
2020 2019
HKS$ &% HKS B
Accounts receivable f& R ERFR 11,564,609 7,473,981
Deposits, other receivables and prepayments ¥z + EAb UK R FBFI R 2,495,469 2,857,769
Interest receivable &Y FI] £, 848,742 575,735
14,908,820 10,907,485

As at 1 April 2018, accounts receivable from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$13,958,726.

As at 31 March 2020, included in the Group’s accounts
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$3,843,218 (2019: HK$4,903,941) which are past due as
at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$80,290
(2019: HK$469,720) has been past due 90 days or more and is
not considered as in default by considering the background of the
debtors, subsequent settlement, historical payment arrangement
and credit standing of these accounts receivable.

Details of impairment assessment as at 31 March 2020 are set out
in note 20.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE -~ E-FH=-A=+—H |t FF

13. Contract Assets 13. 8HNEE
2020 2019
HKS 8% HK$ &1
Accreditation services 5125 AR 72,528 519,244
The contract assets primarily relate to the Council’s right to BREETESRARBEEKIRE T
consideration for work completed and not billed because the rights THEERBENRE - ARZLFENA
are conditioned on the Council's future performance. The contract RBRRERR DG - BENE RERF
assets are transferred to accounts receivable when the rights s - ANEESEERIERN -
become unconditional.
14. Bank Deposits and Cash 14. RITERRRE
2020 2019
HK$ &% HK$ &
Deposits with banks 877 E 17 59,475,688 50,724,359
Cash at bank and other financial institutions and in hand
B RIRITRE M BB 26,553,564 21,369,776
Bank deposits and cash in the statement of financial position
S WMRATRORIT R SR ® 86,029,252 72,094,135
Less: Bank deposits with maturity of more than three months at acquisition
B T AZ = @A EEIERRTTIE R (32,000,000) (16,211,995)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows
ReREXRMTNRE MRS EEY 54,029,252 55,882,140
15. Deferred Government Grants 15. IR BT R B
2020 2019
HK$ &% HK$ &1
Balance as at 1 April AU A —H #9454 6,363,614 8,633,309
Grants received and receivable & U & /i 4 # B - 823,095
Recognised as income during the year A B 2 AU A (2,617,111) (3,092,790)
Balance as at 31 March =3 =+—B &4k 3,746,503 6,363,614
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities J& : JREN & EE NTEIEHN S5 (1,773,044) (2,617,111)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities FERB) & EIE AT B AR & 58 1,973,459 3,746,503
The grants are for supporting the costs of the Qualify Enhancement MBARINERREAENEEEN

Support Scheme projects. PR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZ =T —NF=A=+—HIFE

16. Contract Liabilities

17.

The following is an analysis of the Council's contract liabilities:

16. BHERE

ARZEHBEINIT

2020 2019

HKS$ &% HKS &

Accreditation services fees ;T EARFE & 10,304,835 9,156,632
Consultancy services fees B8 RIS & 2,560,475 333,000
Qualifications assessment fees & & z1{i & 3,256,744 2,956,090
Qualifications registry fees & FF % it & 4,486,580 3,325,703
20,608,634 15,771,425

The contract liabilities at 1 April 2019 were fully recognised as

BE_T-AFUHA-HWNEAEHNEESR

QUALITY ASSURANCE
QUALITY ENHANCEMENT

EXCELLENCE

revenue during the year ended 31 March 2020. BERARBE_T-_TF=A=+—H
LIEFEEES
Provision for Staff Gratuities 17. BTN RS EE
2020 2019
HK$ &% HKS &
Balance as at 1 April /AU A — B #5&4 6,865,782 5,203,796
Provision made #1245 4,287,306 4,706,536
Provision utilised & A% (5,439,661) (3,044,550)
Balance as at 31 March W=A=+—HB#&# 5,713,427 6,865,782
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities J8 : i BEE FIBENSHE (2,673,391) (4,785,073)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities 3ERBI B EIE NI EIEN S8 3,040,036 2,080,709
108 Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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18. Reserves

(@)

(b)

(0

The general reserve has been established since 1 April 2019 in
order to meet operational contingencies and to safeguard the
Council's ability to continue as a going concem. It is transferred
to or from the accumulated surplus up to the actual annual
operating expenditure (excluding any future depreciation
charges of the related assets under the designated reserve) as
at the year ended of reporting periods (rounded to the nearest
million). The general reserve is available for general use and
can be utilised at the discretion of the Council.

The designated reserve has been established since 1
April 2019 for the future capital expenditure requirement
on leasehold properties. It is transferred to or from the
accumulated surplus any surplus in excess of the agreed
ceiling of the general reserve.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of equity instrument at FVTOCI
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 3.

=B R E R ER
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18. %1

(@)

(b)

(0

—REEIE-F-NAFHA—H
R - NEHEELNRETE
RERR RO BRHERE - ZF
FEE IR RS HFERH R BHE
AZEL 2R LRAERNEE
REFZ(TBERRRRNIEERHRE
THEEEMNFTESH) (MEAA
EREBEONBEN) - —REFA
E—RM%  YHARBEER -

EEREBIE-F-NFEA—H
R - R HEMERENR
REAXHER - ZERBEIHR
APEfEAREL - SEABL—
R E LR 2 Bfk o

REEMHE

RESHFERSNME SR
U BEFEBRZEH AR
2ERENEETIANAAEER
RETEFFE - YREMEING
u+BZ RIRIE o
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19.

20.

Capital Risk Management

Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements, its primary financial and
capital management objectives are to maintain a balance between
annual income and expenditure, so that it has the ability to operate
as a going concern and perform its statutory roles and functions.
The Council is primarily financed through the charging of fees for
academic and vocational accreditation services rendered which
include validations, revalidations, institutional reviews, qualifications
assessments and advisory/consultancy services. Any operating
surplus shall be carried forward to the following financial year to
meet future expenditure required for the operations of the Council.

The Council's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
The capital structure of the Council consists of cash and cash
equivalents and accumulated surpluses.

19.

EXERER

R EIEE ) S B X H M M 2R
MEARZER At ARMBRERE R
MEE B REEFTFUCT T - DAE
TRBE R FF B & WIS SKAE Sm & HO&
EAREHANRETEERE - NBH
BT RRAMREHNBMRBXERE
AERGERNER - ARERGEER
F - BENEE RS BEFGN
K& ERRS o EAEERBARE
HEBROVBFE  LWENKREAR
LEMHBHIFX

ARHNEARBRRASZ LRSS EEY
K BT & o

Financial Instruments 20. TRIT R
Categories of financial instruments SR T ENER
2020 2019
HKS$ 78 HKS & #
Financial assets £ @& &
Financial assets at amortised cost & SR ANsT E RIS B A & 140,154,351 122,996,680
Equity instrument at FVTOCI AR 4 (BB &= B E &85t A
Hih2mkmmEm T A 10,374,750 -
150,529,101 122,996,680
Financial liabilities 2R & &
Amortised cost B # $5RA 3,242,857 3,165,441
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20. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Council's major financial instruments include debt instruments
classified as financial assets at amortised cost, accounts and other
receivables, bank deposits and cash and other payables. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Council has the foreign currency denominated debt instruments
classifies as financial assets at amortised cost, which expose the
Council to foreign currency risk. The Council currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Council's foreign currency denominated
monetary asset at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

20. 2R TH(E)

MHEREEBFERBK

ARHNTZEMTABRESBALEH
RAFTENESRMEENEF TR - B
R R HEMENRIE - |RITFERNAS
REMBENTIE - ZFTBTANFS
REMBEMERE  EZFTeRTAR
M ERSETSER(NERR) - 5
SRR MREESRERE - AENEFE
ZERBRAOBRRIIEWT - BEEEE
KEmzERE - LR RENER
HWERBUEETEE

m5E e
SNE R BR

AR R AN S B ) 5 K A i
WRAHEEMEENEHIA B
EHNERR - BAKR A AR AINE
HARE - BAREN  TREGIH
ERBE IS -

BEHKR - NRRINEFTENEREE
BREEWT -

Assets EE
2020 2019
HKS$ & HKS &%
United States dollars ("USD") 7T 42,210,436 39,995,060

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that, as HK$ is pegged to USD, the
Council is not subject to significant foreign currency risk from change
in foreign exchange rate of USD against HK$.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Council's maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Council due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the statement of
financial position.

R T

G

BEERS  ANEBEIITHE K
B ARA FITTH B E RSB TG
EARIMNERR ©

= E/m e S L (B 71
AREST T ETEEMSARREY

BRANKEEERR M BIRAKPT
SIBRHARRAC R M S B ERRRE(E
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20. Financial Instruments (continued) 20. SR T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Accounts receivable and contract assets arising from contracts with
customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Council has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
over the customers to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Council reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debtor at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate allowance are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In addition, the Council performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances based on provision
matrix. In this regard, the management of the Council consider that
the Council's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Council's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. At the end of the
reporting period, the Council had a certain concentration of credit
risk as 34% and 63% (2019: 50% and 77%) of the total accounts
receivable that were due from the largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

Other receivables and bank deposits

The credit risks on other receivables are insignificant as the
management of the Council periodically monitors the balances to
ensure that the counterparties are viable to settle the debts.

Bank deposits are normally placed with financial institutions which
have good credit ratings. Investments in debt instruments are with
counterparties of sound credit ratings. Given their high credit ratings,
management does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to
meet its obligations.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Council only invests in debt instruments with low credit risk.
The Council's debt instruments at amortised cost mainly comprise
of bond issued by listed companies that are graded in the top
investment grade as per globally understood definitions and
therefore are considered to be low credit risk investment. The
management of the Council therefore considered the credit risks are
insignificant.

MBEREE B RREEE)

1= B /7 e 52 gL 18 71 ()

K EHEEFZEE BRI ERRARE
BE

SEEREEERR  AREEECZ
TEFARHEEBEPNERERE -
EEMR L EMEREF - BARKRIUR
R AN BB EIR - 1 - KRR
EREPRENSEHE R ERH AWK
CERE RS TIKOSEEL TR
R o SN - BN EREREN R 5 5%
B ARERREHEEBRKAELEITH
B - BN S - AREEERR/A
BrEERRE KIEREE -

AREGNEERRIEXIGRERP
RS2 - RIREBRR - ARTFES
PEERR  SABEPMAERERESD
Al LU BR FRAB BB B 3400 FN630% (=
— 4 50%F77%) °

At fEIR IR R IRTTIF A

HpEUHRENEERRIL TEAX -
%ﬂﬂ%aﬁ%mﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁ » AREIR 2
FHEFHENBEER

RIOTFFBEFRREBRFEEFTR
MBS - ARMEBTAREFR
REBREFEEFRNXSETF - ER
HRIFNEEFR  ERBATRRE
LR HHFETEITEENAET -

KEHK AT EZ EFTA

ARERENEERBRRENEBET
B ARREBHEKRAFTEZEB TAE
EWETRRBTNESER  %ZFE
FRBERDBNERRIRZSHRE
AR AR REEERRIKRE - A
It ARERER/LEFEERRIL T
EpN
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20. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
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20. €T A (E)

MBEREE B RREEE)

1= B /7 e 52 gL 18 71 ()

The Council's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the KEAFEERRERTHREATE
following categories: Al
Internal credit Accounts receivable/  Other
rating Description contract assets financial assets
R ER S E AR Bkl YRR, SREE HitemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
v default and does not have any past-  not credit-impaired 12{8 A ATEHAE E1E K
due amounts BEFEANEREEE
RHHFENRRE RAEMAH K- FEXRRE
Gl
Normal risk Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
— AR B dates but usually settle after due date  not credit-impaired 12{8 A ATEHAE E1E X
ERAKEEIHRZZET  BR BEFEHNEHEESER
BEIHAZRER K—EERREAE
High risk There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

= R

Loss

EES

Write-off
[Eai]

=B R E R ER

in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed
internally

B KRR EE
[\ R HE AN

SYAHERIAR - 58

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

BEBRAZEEFERDRE

There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Council has no realistic
prospect of recovery
ARBRABHBAGRENMBEA
B ARERBEEEAAKE

not credit-impaired
REFERNEREERE
K—EERNRE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
BEFEHANEREERE
K—EEERE

Amount is written off

TR

not credit-impaired
REFERNEREEE
K—EERNRE

Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired
BEFEHANEREERE
K—EEERE

Amount is written off

SREC T
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20. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

20. ER T A (E)

MBEREE B RREEE)

1= B /7 e 52 gL 18 71 ()

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Council's Ti’%?ﬂﬁ%ﬁ??}%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ EE R )
financial assets and contract assets, which are subject to ECL TREERGNEENEERRARE
assessment:
Internal 12-month or lifetime ECL
Notes creditrating  12f8F AEHGEER %S Gross carrying amount
i KHEEIR BEFEHABRHEEEX RELH
2020 2019
HKS 8% HKSB%
Financial assets at amortised cost
RESRATENERER
Accounts receivable 12 Lowrisk Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 11,564,609 7,473,981
FEYR [EER BEFESNEHEEEL
(EEDE)
Other receivables 12 Lowrisk 12m ECL 1,7782718 2,857,769
At (EER EAREREEERR
Debt instruments classified as financial assets at amortised costs 1T Lowrisk 12m ECL 39,216,279 39,995,060
PEBREEN AT ESREENERBIA (EER EAREREEER
Bank deposits and cash 14 Low risk 12m ECL 86,029,252 72,904,135
FTRTRES [EER REAREREEERR
Other item E175H
Contract assets 13 Lowrisk Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 72,528 519,244
AHEE (EE EEFEHNBHEEER
(EfmRE)
Liquidity risk REEZEE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Council maintains REBRBECRERNE @ NBERE

sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding from major

BRANBSFEE —Wfﬂi“fﬁﬁ’JTL
FEF LR EBEMERIBEEE RWEAGH

financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

At the end of the reporting period, the Council’'s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities is mainly repayable
on demand or within three months from the end of respective
reporting periods. In the opinion of council members, the difference
between the carrying amounts of the financial liabilities and the
undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest date on which the
Council can be required to pay is not significant and therefore, no
further analysis is presented.

QUALITY ASSURANCE
QUALITY ENHANCEMENT

114

ZRERE  URRHERBESRER
RHZENR -

RBEHR  AEEMABENHTED
FHEEREREMRERERK=(E
AREE - ABRKERS  £HAER
HEMREAREZFHEERNTRAS
MEBZZBRIEX - At - REBHE
— D2 -

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications



For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=—

20. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Council determines
fair value of various financial assets.

y

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R M R

EoRF=A=+—RALEFE

20. 2R TH(E)

MBEREE B RREEE)

ST RHAAEETE

HHFREARNAEESESREE
HMRAEE -

(i)  Fair value of the Councdil's financial assets that are measured at () BEHEEEEURABEAEHARN

fair value on a recurring basis PErEE :
The Council's equity investment is measured at fair value KERHESIEERRERRZ AN
at the end of the reporting period. The following table gives BEE - TRIIHOFAETLILS
information about how the fair value of this financial asset is BMEENAAEBEE(LARFERN
determined (in particular, the valuation technique and input HEFTERBARBE) o
used).
Fair value
hierarchy  Valuation technique
Financial assets Far value as at DAREE and key input
THEE DNAEER B HEFERETEBABE
2020 2019
HKS$ 7&# HK$ /&8
Equity instruments at FVTOCI 10,374,750 - Level1 Quoted bid price in an active
NARBEFEEEEE E— market
ST AE M 2 U ERH mRTIS TR EAE
BmTA
There were no transfers in different levels of the fair value (E T _EF=A=+—HILF
hierarchy during the years ended 31 March 2020. B WEARAREBEER B
MGk -

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are not measured at fair (i) HIFLEFHEREUNRAABETED
value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are rRemEE(REREHLLAAE
required) @) :

Except as detailed in the following table, the council members BRTRAR - NEKERRIER
consider that the carrying amounts of other financial assets BHBERzeREENSRAED
and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements FREEEEAABERE -
approximate their fair values.
2020 2019
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
fREE AREE REE DRfEE
HKS 7&# HKS &# HKS B HKS B
Debt instruments (&7 T A 39,216,280 39,883,148 39,995,060 40,076,165
QUALITY ASSURANCE
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21.

22,

Operating Lease Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Council had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

21.

REHERE

RMEMKR - ARRBETAIHEL LR
EANZ RERENFRIEHAZNT -

2020 2019
HK$ &% HKS &1

(Note) (KtzZ)
Within one year —4F (A N/A 7EH 12
In the second to fifth years inclusive E-ZFHF (BEMESEERN) N/A ~EA 17
N/A ~EA 29

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Council
for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for a term of 5 years
and rentals are fixed for 5 years. The Council has an option to
renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.

Note: The operating lease commitments of the Council was related to the leases of
its office premises which the Council has elected not to recognise any lease
liabilities nor right of use assets as the leases of low-value assets are insignificant
to the financial statements upon the adoption of HKFRS 16 since 1 April 2019.

Related Party Transactions

All transactions related to the provision of accreditation services to
organisations in which a member of the Council, key management
personnel and the HKSAR Government may have an interest are
conducted in the normal course of business and in accordance with
the Council's fee charging policy and fee schedule as prescribed by
the Ordinance.

Except as disclosed in (iv) and (v) below, all transactions related to
the procurement of goods and services involving organisations in
which a member of the Council, key management personnel and
the HKSAR Government may have an interest are conducted in the
normal course of business and in accordance with the Council's
financial obligations and normal procurement procedures.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Council had the following related
party transactions:

0]

Honorarium to Council members in the capacity of

22,

REMENTBAREARENMRAE
MiEE - HHOREHGIEFIHR5F
Hi - REAREEEN - MATA RS
EITERIHR o

i ARMKEHEREERARAEHESM -
E-Z-NFUA-HERETBHHMEE
AIE165E 212 - ARBETHZSRETE
AERABENHEAERERAEEE - A
RESEEEEEMEHYHRRTETE
* o

RELXRS

PIEEAREZEENKE  BREEASR
MEBBRTA NSO EET RS
BRXHUBIERXRTENF - YRR
[BH) B AU R R GBI RT R & A —
BREWER -

B ATE (v) B (V) IEFT IR &SI - P
AREZEKE  BREEASNES

BB M B W 1T /O & Gn M AR5 4R
BRXIVBLEEXRFENF  YEREEA
BrM R AR ERRBEFET -

BRI MR ENR B MAERIN -
RREBATHEBIRS

() ABREUATES T E

2020 2019
HK$ & HKg B
Non-local Council members 375 B 260,000 260,000

Local Council members are not remunerated.
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22. Related Party Transactions (continued)
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22. BEARZ (&)

(i) Key management personnel remuneration (i) AREBEAESHS
2020 2019
HK$ &% HK$ 7%
Salaries and other emoluments 4 & E b B¢ 4,161,472 6,966,170
Retirement scheme contributions iR {REH2IHE TR 21,000 36,000
4,182,472 7,002,170
Key management personnel comprise of the Executive Bl

(iif)

Director, Deputy Executive Director (Academic) and Deputy
Executive Director (Vocational and Professional Education and
Training).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, approximately 24%
(2019: 22%) of the Council's total income are derived
from services provided to the HKSAR Government, and
approximately 8% (2019: 119%) of it are derived from
services provided to other government-related entities. All the
sernvices are conducted in the normal course of business and
in accordance with the Council's fee charging policy and fee
schedule as prescribed by the Ordinance.

(iif)

Eﬁiﬁ% EABBREARSE
1) MERRE(BEESTH

BHE-Z-ZF=-A=+—HILHF
IE E$%W@H&)\EP #4924%
ZE—NF  220) KA AT
BHERE - 8% (T —hE
11% ) 2R & 1A £ 4tb B T AR BE B A2 4=
MRS - BRI BIER EKE
15 YERBABE BEBURER
MEGIETRNEBR —EXREKRE
ﬁq o

(iv) Effective from 1 September 2011, the Council has entered (ivy A =ZE—F LA —HE - K%Eﬁi
into a lease with the HKSAR Government and rented a vacant ﬁfﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁTT—lﬁﬁﬁgTﬁé
school premises in Siu Sai Wan Estate, Chai Wan, Hong Kong AEE 1 TRBAERE ’%%ﬁé
at a charge of $1 per month as its office. /J BB —MEEERREIERMT

’D\?E °

(v) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the HKSAR (v) 22 -ZEF=A=+—HIF
Government also provided funding support of approximately B BEEBRNEDR/ABDNE=
HK$nil (2019: HK$400,000) for the phase Il of the HAMBEARERBEERETE
Council's information technology infrastructure development ¥ZT(ZZ— N4 : E¥400,000

project, HK$4,700,000 (2019: HK$3,000,000) for the daily
maintenance and regular upgrading of the QR and HK$nil
(2019: HK$423,096) for the quality enhancement supporting
scheme.

JL) r Rt B BEEMTHERESR
i FH AR AR T 78 ¥ 4,700,0007T (=
T—NF - B%3,000,0005T) © I
REERATEBERHETELES
TT(ZE—NF : B%4230967T)
WES -
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ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE
X o A

For the Year Ended 31 March 2020 B Z — T -—ZTF=A=+—HItFE

2020 2019
HKS$ %% HK$ A

STAFF COSTS & TR
Salaries #r& 50,992,383 53,095,076
Allowances and other staff costs 28 & E fh 8 T LA 7,431,996 7,625,591

58,424,379 60,720,667

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 171 & FH

Auditor's remuneration #Z &M & 178,382 287,385
Bank charges $R1TF /& & 10,670 12,286
Cleaning /52 & 475,822 450,524
Community relations #t[& B8 (& 24,846 42,940
Consultancy fees &R & 523,900 643,968
Depreciation #1& 3,337,226 3,164,008
Foreign exchange loss [& 5 184 536,924 -
Incidental expenses F#1E 7 H 68,580 72,902
Insurance (R & 289,088 298,016
Legal advisory fees A1 & 639,385 290,931
Membership fee & 8 & 67,542 131,351
Overseas visits and conferences @9MNH T A &35 276,732 896,631
Periodicals, newspapers and books Hifl] + R4k F1E A& 3,129 11,458
Photocopying 5 H1& 22,635 27,122
Postage & & 37,299 28,637
Printing ENfml & 74,280 103,010
Publicity 518 % 290,535 339,460
Recruitment and training 552 [z £23| 108,524 41,344
Rent and rates T4 FnZ fif 304,000 303,120
Repairs and maintenance #& &R E & 551,193 468,606
Securities transaction charges &5 & & & 13,669 61,393
Security (R E 323,022 328,391
Stationery and consumables XA FIEFER 395,479 330,290
Telephone and facsimile EEMEEE 440,436 373,586
Tools and equipment T A FI:& 4,222,035 3,292,575
Transport and travelling 2238 & 75,079 81,632
Utilities 7k ~ B 166,646 174,234
Work related research T {E+8E8 737 100,036 225,443

13,557,094 12,481,243
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y

Analysis of Expenditure

o

For the Year Ended 31 March 2020 #Z T -TF=A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
HKS$ 78 HK$ B
DIRECT ACCREDITATION/CONSULTANCY COSTS BH#:1% B

Accreditation costs FFEEARK A 7,571,341 7,947,310
Qualifications Register costs & & 4t A 4 2,741,906 1,987,724
10,313,247 9,935,034

COUNCIL MEETING AND COMMITTEE EXPENSES KB &# R E8 &% H
Air passages #3E 315,795 470,400
Honorarium payments i1 5% 260,000 260,000
Hotel accommodation ;B JE{E 78 & 85,006 80,258
Working lunches and dinners A7 &r fBg &R 3 1 184,565 168,477
Subsistence allowance 2R & 30,550 24,050
Transport and miscellaneous expenses 32 i & Fl5 & 15,630 25,100
891,546 1,028,285
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 3% i 48%8 83,186,266 84,165,229
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APPENDIX
Bt 53

Terms of Reference of Committees EREECSHEHEER

Terms of Reference of Committees Qualifications and Accreditation EERERIEZZES

Committee (QAC)

Terms of Reference Bz

(a) To consider and make recommendations to the Council on (@)
accreditation policies, standards and procedures relevant to the
Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualification’s (HKCAAVQ) statutory roles as the Accreditation
Authority under the Qualifications Framework and those relevant to
non-QF-related accreditation/quality assurance services.

(b) To consider and make recommendations to the Council on policies  (b)
and procedures for maintaining the Qualifications Register (QR) in

fulfilment of HKCAAVQ's statutory roles as the QR Authority.

(c) To consider and make recommendations to the Council on policies, ()
criteria and procedures for undertaking assessments in regard to:

«  Non-local courses
«  Continuing Education Fund (CEF) reimbursable courses
«  Continuing Professional Development (CPD) courses
+  Individual qualifications
«  Any other relevant activities
(d) To consider and advise the Council on any other matters concerning ~ (d)
or affecting HKCAAVQ's accreditation, assessment and consulting

services.

(e) To make recommendations to the Council on such matters within ~ (e)
QAC's remit as they arise.

URANCE

METHERR  RERRF  AREE
BMEBXEEFER(FFER) KSR
hEes - BT EREREERET
APEE RAVATEREE - RAPERRHEMD
AR ERRERS o

MEAHEEEERMOBRRIER -
FAFERASRRLER  NETHE
Bl RERERME BRATEREE

90 R At T 5 AR AR S O - R
RRRR - LEFEBARIRHES

« FERMERAZRTAZ

© FEEBESRENZ

© FEEEREIFENRIETR

« EASREFE

«  HiERETE
REMEMEEXTEFERTE &
N ER RS EEETHR RIRRE

N
2%
BE

EEEMTEZESRERENEE
HREMEEAFERARIRRES °
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Finance Committee (FC)

Terms of Reference

(@

(b)

©

(d

(e

®

®

)

To consider and recommend, for the Council's approval, the annual
budget of the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ), including any subsequent
adjustments thereof.

To consider the medium and long-term financial plans of HKCAAVQ.

To keep under review the financial position of HKCAAVQ, including
its return on investment and fee charging policy, and make
recommendations to the Council as appropriate.

To receive, consider and recommend for the Council's approval the
audited financial statements.

To recommend, for the Council's approval, the appointment of
Auditors.

To monitor available cash balances and make recommendations
concerning the liquidation of investments to ensure that an
appropriate level of cash reserves is maintained.

To periodically review internal controls of HKCAAVQ as they relate
to financial and accounting matters.

To make recommendations to the Council on such matters within
FC's remit as they arise.

Personnel and Administration Committee (PAC)

Terms of Reference

@
(b)

©

(d
©)

B

To keep under review the staffing structure of the Secretariat.

To monitor human resources policies and practices of the Hong
Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualification and to recommend changes when necessary,
paying particular attention to staff development and training, the
remuneration package and matters of staff welfare.

To consider adjustments to the staff salary based on the outcomes
of the annual performance appraisal and development review.

To keep under review the administrative efficiency of the Secretariat.

To make recommendations to the Council on such matters within
PAC's remit as they arise.

EMEBEERTFER

Appendix
B &%

MBEES
BEaE
(a) BRFERNFERE  BEERERNH

8
B PRRFAERIASRBE -

(b) WiFEFFERFMMEMY S

(0 BERRFAFEROUBIR  BEERE
BB EREK - WA EFERK
SRRXEE -

(d) BRRWZBIMBZOMERE - A
AFFERASROEILES -

(o) HREBEMMEERHER  WIRRAE
RAREBA -

(h ERFERNHABAREEHRNEIEH
REZEBRELES  UBRRRSHE
KRB EAIKF

(9) EHmEFERT EME L et HR
MEBESHE o

(h) EMBZESRESRENEE B EM
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AERITREES

B

(a) BEREFRFIWERMAFRE
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& TR e EE
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